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GENERAL INFORMATION
—REH
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GENERAL INFORMATION
—RBEH
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 Change
FERT FET &
Revenue W25 19,427,118 21,415,651 -9.3%
Gross profit EF 2,121,657 2,486,422 14.7%
Profit for the year attributable to ~ RA & A AJES
results of the Company N 55 ) 845,422 1,118,369 -24.4%
EBITDA and before share of TEITE R A R DY
results of associates /N IR 2,197,491 2,492,346 -11.8%
EPS (HK cents) xR & GBI
— Basic and diluted — HEARE#E 29.08 38.41 -24.3%
DPS (HK cents) RS (B
— Interim — A Hf 7 10 -30.0%
— Final — RHA 3 5 -40.0%
— Full Year — 4 10 15 -33.3%

The final dividend of 3 HK cents per share (2014: final dividend of 5
HK cents) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Basic earnings per share, dividends per share and dividend payout ratio
BREXREZR - BRERERIKELER

EPS&MZF]  — Dividend payout ratio J& B .t &
HK cents
#a [l OPSERAE
60 47% 57.43 50
45
50 40
40 35
30
29.08
30 27.09 25.67 25
" 20.91 190 20
13.76 15.0 15
o7 100 1000 8 1145 10.0 100 | 4o
10 47 4.9 5.0 5.5
Hm 'm N ;
0 0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
* The calculation of basic earnings per share and dividends per share for the year from 2006 to 2010 have been adjusted for the bonus
issued and the share subdivision that have been approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 January
2011.
* ZEENFE_F-FFHRELBFIRGRREGATEERRRIR -FE——F— A+ ARITZREGFFIAE FH S BETARK
TR PFARIE L 7 E o

Analysis of EBITDA and before share of results of associates margin, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)

BEFBERBEURSIEBEQTRENANER - BRR - EERRRURARIRD T (%)

19.9

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

________ Gross profit margin
A%

Operating profit margin

R

2011

2012 2013 2014 2015

Net profit margin attributable
to the owners of the Company

KRR ARG AER =

EBITDA and before share of results
of associates margin
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Turnover by geographical segments
BWES RIS 2 EXH

2% JAPAN 2% JAPAN
59 Sk 3% OTHERS A 49 OTHERS
0 EUROPE Hith 2, Hith
T o EUROPE
F B
—
39% HONG KONG
B 29% HONG KONG
BB
12% 13%
SOUTH KOREA SOUTH KOREA
mw® A
75% 77%
CHINA CHINA
+ F
Turnover by operating segments
RISEDHEI D 2 EXER
17 9% Electronic consumer products (Note 2) 139 Electronic consumer products (Note 2)
B HBEMRMEE 2) B HEEMME2)
83% 87%
LCD products (Note 1) LCD products (Note 1)
TR B BN (M 1) Repse BN Em(MIE 1)
Note 1: LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD products and touch panel products

M RERBERSER — HERIHRSERTRSERMEZEFRER

Note 2: Electronic consumer products — manufacture and distribution of electronic consumer products such as CCM,
personal health care products and electrical devices
M2 s EFHBEM — NERHSHEFHEERDINMEERESR  EARRERKEFRE)
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THE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FRBREE

Truly International Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) has discontinued its consecutive
six year revenue growth (2009-2014), the revenue in 2015 was
dropped by around HK$2.0 billion or 9.3% when compared to 2014
(HK$21.4 billion).

The Group's gross profit margin and net profit margin attributable
to owners of the Group in 2015 have been slightly decreased from
11.6% in 2014 t0 10.9% in 2015 and 5.2% in 2014 to 4.4% in 2015
respectively. Both gross profit margin and net profit margin
attributable to owners of the Group in 2015 were narrowed, which
were mainly attributed by the decrease in average selling price of
the Group’s smartphone related products in 2015. This situation
had been one of the major difficulties being encountered by the
management team. The management team has reduced the
negative impacts on the Group’s revenue and profit from the
decrease in average selling price of the Group’s smartphone related
products through optimizing production process, production
automation, and enhancing the non-smartphone business
development such as automotive and industrial products.
Therefore, the management would continue to try their best to
enhance the development of non-smartphone businesses and new
products, including fingerprint recognition module being launched
in late 2015.

Although the Group’'s key products’ average selling price are
continuing to drop, the management has confident that the Group’s
revenue can still grow in 2016 because of better products mix
(increasing the revenue proportion by non-smartphone products)
and strong market demand on smartphone being maintained.

Our main targets in 2016 are to regain growth in the Group's
revenue, improving the profit margins, launching the production of
Huizhou factory and raising enough funds to build the 5th
generation TFT-LCD production line in Shanwei.

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all the staff and
workers for their continuing contribution towards the Group’s
development. Besides, the Group wishes to extend its gratitude for
the continuing support from its shareholders, customers, bankers
and business partners.

Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBEwER S

Business Review and Award

Revenue for the year recorded a decrease by approximately 9.3%
amounting to HK$19.4 billion (2014: HK$21.4 billion) after
consecutive six years revenue growth (2009-2014), which was
mainly due to average selling price of the Group’s smartphone
related products being decreased.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$845 million which was approximately 24.4%
less than last corresponding year in 2014 (approximately HK$1,118
million). Basic earnings per share decreased to 29.08 HK cents
from 38.41 HK cents for corresponding period of the previous year.
The 2015 total interim dividends of 7 HK cents per ordinary share
were paid and payable during the year 2015 (2014: 10 HK cents per
ordinary share). In view of this, the Board of Directors has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 3 HK cents per
ordinary share, representing a payout ratio of 34.4%.

The gross profit margin for the year decreased to around 10.9%
(2014: 11.6%) and net profit margin for the year attributable to
owners of the Company decreased to approximately 4.4% (2014:
5.2%). As stated in the Chairman Statement, decrease in net profit
attributable to owners of the Company in 2015 were mainly
attributed by the decrease in average selling price of the Group's
smartphone related products, including display module and touch
module during the year. The main reasons for decreasing in
average selling price of smartphone related products were keen
competition in the smartphone industry and growth slowdown in
smartphone market. However, the negative impacts on the Group's
revenue and profit from the decrease in average selling price of the
Group’s smartphone related products has been minimized through
past few years optimizing production process, production
automation, and enhancing the non-smartphone business
development such as automotive and industrial products.

The Group’s LCD business including touch panel products and
automotive display business was about 82.7% of the Group's
revenue for the year 2015. Other businesses of the Group including
the sales of compact camera module and printed circuit board
accounted were approximately 17.3% of the Group's revenue in
year 2015. LCD business would continue to be the core business
of the Group in next few years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBEwER S

In order to satisfy continuously the new products specification
requirements from the customers and improve the manufacturing
processes, the Group continues to put resources in the Group's
research and development, the Group spent around HK$755 million
and HK$803 million in 2015 and 2014 respectively. During 2015,
the Group has continued to register many patents related to
manufacturing processes of Compact Camera Module, LCD
Products and Touch Panel Products in China. Besides, the Group
was obtained a few Best Partner Awards from business partners in
2015. Besides, the Group has started to supply the fingerprint
recognition module to the customers in late 2015. The fingerprint
recognition application will be an indispensable component of a
smartphone and would be one of the main driver for revenue
growth in 2016.

Segment Information

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of performance focuses on the
sales of different types of products. Inter-segment sales are
charged at prevailing market rates. Thus the Group is currently
organised into two operating segments which are sales of LCD
products and electronic consumer products. The information for
each operating segment is as follows:

manufacture and distribution of LCD
products and touch panel products

LCD products —

manufacture and distribution of
electronic consumer products such
as CCM, personal health care
products and electrical devices

Electronic consumer —
products
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERBEWE S

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

PERERFEE
AEBERZERBREDBEDNREREEDN

m

BE_FE-—NhF+_H=1—HIFZF

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Segment
RAE ETHE total  Eliminations Consolidated
BTRER Em PEAR e e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT TET Tz TR
REVENUE g
External sales AN 16,067,993 3,359,125 19,427,118 - 19,427,118
Inter-segment sales HBREE - 326,813 326,813 (326,813) -
16,067,993 3,685,938 19,753,931 (326,813) 19,427,118
RESULT E4 |
Segment result ECES 1,329,844 37,436 1,367,280 (5,450) 1,361,830
Finance costs BHER (102,501)
Unallocated expenses AOEHY (135,973)
Profit before tax AR 1,123,356
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—FT—WF+-A=1+—HIFEF
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Segment
Bk BTHE total  Eliminations  Consolidated
BTHRER Em DB Eafis ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FEL TEL TET TEL
REVENUE g
External sales M 18,539,879 2,875,772 21,415,651 - 21,415,651
Inter-segment sales HEREE - 397,586 397,586 (397,586) -
18,539,879 3,273,358 21,813,237 (397,586) 21,415,651
RESULT £
Segment result NRER 1,689,436 97,051 1,786,487 (14,588) 1,771,899
Finance costs BRER (93,890)
Unallocated expenses AOERE (56,008)
Profit before tax A Al 1,622,001

10  Truly International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2015



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBEwER S

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments, finance costs and share of results of associates. This
is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers by location of customers and (ii)
the Group's non-current assets by location of assets.

DERHENEARDEPRITHEEXS - EFHT
TEEMTARAFEEZDER MBEER LY
B E R B RENS D BAMREUER - th AR E
REBEBRREREANDRERLFERROE
& e

TR () AEERFTF AR D ENINEE
P Uas Ko (i) AR EiR & EMAEHE D BRI 3ER B

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

SHEEF W RBEE
2015 2014 31.12.2015 31.12.2014
- —F-mF
“E-HF —E=—F +=—HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FH&TT
PRC Fh 14,634,342 16,401,624 8,357,052 7,702,113
South Korea [FaEH 2,250,079 2,720,132 - -
Hong Kong BB 539,864 535,245 61,983 100,712
Japan SR 369,929 526,291 - -
Europe B 1,013,792 470,154 - -
Others Hit 619,112 762,205 - -
19,427,118 21,415,651 8,419,035 7,802,825

Outlook A=

The management expects that the group’s revenue could regain
the growth in 2016 by the gradually maturing of mobile 4G network
in China, the Group’s new product, fingerprint recognition module
and enhancing non-smartphone business development.

The management would foresee that the situation of decrease in
average selling price of the Group’s smartphone related products
would be continued in 2016 but the magnitude of the price
decrease would be reduced when compared to 2015 and 2014.
Therefore, apart from the current ways, the management would
continue to think other measures to mitigate this situation and
improve the profit margins.

BEPBZREERKANBEAGHER - AREH
B iR AU R EA R IR SE R RE F M B R
ERERH T A"FAKEKEATREREE -

EREEMASEEETREMERTFHIEET
BZBERBR T RFHE - EERT®EE
BE_Z-RFR T —MFYRE - Aik - FH
TI0RSN  BIREREEE B E M e A E R L
B WekENEER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBEwER S

Proposed Spin-off Update

The management would like to update the Shareholders and
investors that the Proposed Spin-off is still under progress and the
Company has decided to focus on the PRC IPO way to proceed.

Further announcements will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Financial Analysis

Results
Results for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s audited
consolidated revenue amounted to HK$19.4 billion (2014: HK$21.4
billion), representing a decrease of 9.3% as compared to that of
last year.

The Group's gross profit margin and net profit margin attributable
to the owners of the Company decreased to 10.9% and 4.4% in
2015 from 11.6% and 5.2% in 2014 respectively.

EBITDA and before share of results of associates and profit
attributable to owners of the Company were decreased to
HK$2,197 million (2014: HK$2,492 million) by 11.8% and HK$845
million (2014: HK$1,118 million) by 24.4% respectively. Basic
earnings per share was decreased to 29.08 HK cents (2014 38.41
HK cents) by 24.3%.

Income tax expenses

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, two of the
Company's PRC subsidiaries were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprise
and entitled to 15% PRC enterprise income tax for three years
from 2012 to 2014. The PRC subsidiaries were continuously
granted the status of Hi-Tech Enterprise in September 2015 by the
relevant authority for three years from 1 January 2015 and the
whole application for the preferential tax treatment for further three
years with effect from 1 January 2015 would expect to be
completed in May 2016. Accordingly, PRC Enterprise Income Tax
is provided at 15% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

12 Truly International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBEwER S

Investment, Assets and Liabilities

Update on investment in an associate — Truly (Huizhou) Smart Display
Limited ({57 (E M) BB RFRAA)

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement (refer to the
discloseable transaction announcement dated on 11 November
2014), the Group has further contributed RMB460 million in 2015
by cash. After the capital increase of the associate completed in
2015, the associate has been held as to 53% by the Group without
change.

Before the associate obtained the bank loans, the Group has lent
short term loans with the amount of RMB500 million plus USD22
million to the associate to satisfy its payment schedule as the bank
loan cannot be obtained as expected in time. These two short term
loans to the associate by the Group were still outstanding as at 31
December 2015. However, the associate has partially repaid
RMB200 million to the Group in January 2016.

The bank loans have been successfully obtained by the associate in
November 2015 with the maximum loans limit of RMB2,180 million
plus USD120 million. In order to satisfy payment schedule for the
factory construction and relevant machinery without delay the
construction completion date of the Huizhou AMOLED production
line of the associate, Truly Semiconductors Limited, an indirectly
wholly-owned PRC subsidiary of the Company and as a shareholder
of the associate, provided full amount guarantee of the bank loans
accordingly. As at 31 December 2015, the associate has partially
withdrawn the loan amount of RMB650 million plus USD90 million.
The remaining balance of loan amount of RMB1,530 million plus
USD30 million would be expected to be withdrawn in 2016.

The construction of this Huizhou factory of the associate would be
completed in late March 2016 or early April 2016 and can begin to
trial production in April or May 2016.

Build up a 5th generation TFT-LCD production line

On 22 January 2016, the Group has entered an agreement with
Samsung Display Co., Limited to purchase the machinery and
equipment of the 5th generation TFT-LCD production line with
color filter production line with the amount of USD50,880,000. For
detail of the transaction, please refer to the discloseable transaction
announcement dated 22 January 2016.

Besides, the Group has commenced to communicate with the
banks for debt financing arrangement in relation to building up the
5th generation TFT-LCD Production line in early 2016. The
management estimated that the total investment amount for
completion of this 5th generation TFT-LCD production line would
be between RMB3 billion and RMB3.5 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBEwER S

As the Group's existing 2.5th generation TFT-LCD production line
does not have enough capacity to satisfy the Automobile and
Industrial customers’ demand. Therefore, the 5th generation TFT-
LCD production is very important for the Group’s continuing
development on non-smartphone products such as automobile and
industrial products.

Further announcements will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate in compliance with the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

4.5 generation capacitive touch panel production line

This capacitive touch panel production line is still under the
construction on schedule in the Group’s Shanwei factory, which
would be commenced production in April 2016 and planned mainly
for automotive products.

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to approximately HK$847 million and furniture, fixtures and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$213 million for the
purpose of enhancing its manufacturing capacity and production
automation in the China factory campus.

Total assets were decreased by approximately 2.7% to
approximately HK$18,234 million which comprised approximately
HK$9,730 million of current assets, approximately HK$6,969 million
of property, plant and equipment and approximately HK$1,535
million of other non-current assets. Total liabilities were
approximately HK$10,639 million, of which approximately
HK$8,579 million were current liabilities and approximately
HK$2,060 million were non-current liabilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding bank and other
borrowings, net of restricted bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, were approximately HK$2,755 million (2014:
approximately HK$1,774 million). It was increased by approximately
55% when compared to last year. These borrowing bear interest at
prevailing market rate and their maturity profiles are shown in the
financial statements. For non-current portion of these borrowings
were matured within 5 years.

Except for the 5th generation TFT-LCD Production line plan, the
financial position of the Group is still healthy for future capital
expansion as at 31 December 2015 while maintaining a sufficiently
level of restricted bank deposits, cash and bank balances
(approximately HK$2,128 million at 31 December 2015) together
with adequate unutilized banking facilities. The gearing ratio based
on total interest bearing debts, net of restricted bank deposits,
cash and bank balances was approximately 39%, which has
increased from 25% at 31 December 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBEwER S

Capital expenditure commitment of around HK$190 million for the
year 2016 in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment
was contracted for but not provided as at 31 December 2015.

General
The state of the Group's current order books is very strong.

Except for investments in subsidiaries, an associated company and
available for sale investments, neither the Group nor the Company
had held any other material investments during the year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in furniture, fixture and equipment
and plant and machinery were approximately HK$1,538 million. As
at 31 December 2015, the Group had no pledge or mortgage on its
fixed assets.

Around 21,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our
Shan Wei factory in China and around 100 personnel in the Group’s
Hong Kong office. Total staff costs for 2015 were approximately
HK$2,034 million.

At the balance sheet date, a subsidiary of the Company is a
defendant in a legal action in Italy involving the alleged defective
goods manufactured by the subsidiary according to its customers’
designs and specifications. The claim above against the subsidiary
is approximately Euro 7.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$61 million) in aggregate. The directors believe, based on legal
advice, that the case has legal and factual grounds to defend and
therefore it is not probable that losses (including claims for costs)
will be incurred. As a result, no provision has been made at the end
of the reporting period in this regard.

In addition, at 31 December 2015, the Group has given corporate
guarantee for bank borrowings granted to the associate (Truly
(Huizhou) Smart Display Limited ({5 %] (M) & EBE R AR A A1)
with the borrowing limit at approximately HK$3,538,920,000 and
the bank loans with the amount of approximately
HK$1,473,902,000 were withdrawn by the associate.

Furthermore, at 31 December 2015 the other shareholder of the
associate provided corporate guarantee to the above bank
borrowings in proportion to its respective ownership interest
amounting to approximately HK$867,035,000. A counter-indemnity
in favour of the other shareholder is executed pursuant to which
the Group undertakes to indemnify the other shareholder 24.5% of
the liabilities arising from the bank borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBEwER S

The directors assess the risk of default of the associate at the end
of reporting period and consider the risk to be insignificant and it is
less likely that any guaranteed amount will be claimed by the
counterparties.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be considered to
hedge, if any.

Other Information

Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 3 HK
cents (2014: 5 HK cents) per share for the year ended 31
December 2015, based on ordinary shares in issue (hnumber of
ordinary shares issued at 29 February 2016: 2,907,099,398), to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members on
27 May 2016 (Friday). It is expected that the final dividend
payments will be made to shareholders on 8 June 2016,
Wednesday, subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The interim dividends in aggregate of 7 HK cents per share (2014
10 HK cents) were paid in 2015 and 2016 to shareholders on the
register of member of the Company at the close of business on 9
June 2015, 28 August 2015 and 8 December 2015, based on
2,907,099,398 ordinary shares in issue.

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 34.4%.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2016
Annual General Meeting, the Register of Members will be closed
on Friday, 20 May 2016, during which day no transfer of shares can
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
all transfers accompanied by relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 19 May 2016.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed on Friday, 27
May 2016, during which day no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at the above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 26 May 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBEwER S

Customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 41% of the total sales of the Group
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 23% of the total purchases of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our largest customer
accounted for approximately 16% of the total sales of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 10% of the total purchases of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2015, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group's five largest customers and/or
five largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, aged 63, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has
over 39 years of experience in the electronics industry. He is
primarily responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall
strategic planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 57, is an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chief Operating Officers of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group's operations in respect of internal
controls and risk management, investors’ relationship and external
affairs. He joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, aged 60, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD
products and other electronic components. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he had been the sales manager for a number of
electronics companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 52, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company and the Managing Director of a PRC subsidiary of the
Company, Truly Opto-Electronics Limited. He is mainly responsible
for the factory production management of the Group. Mr. Li
graduated from the Jilin University of Technology and Engineering
Management in 1987 and joined the group in 1989. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in a multinational motor car manufacturer in
Guangzhou City, the PRC for almost two years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBEwER S

Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 58, is an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Group's Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, member of
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a council
member of the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants.
Mr. Chung has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management and has been the independent Non-executive
Director, management consultant and Company Secretary of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 57, is an independent Non-
executive Director and members of the Group's Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is the holder of a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Wisconsin,
Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is a CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER®"
CFP" and a member of the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong
Kong. He is the Senior Financial Planning Consultant of a
professional insurance company in Hong Kong. Mr. Ip is also an
Accredited Mediator of the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 67, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile industry.

Mr. Ma Wai Tong, aged 44, is the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Group and the Company respectively.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in January 2011 and had 19 years of
auditing, accounting and financing experience including four years
with major international accounting firms and over ten years in
senior accounting positions in various industries. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma
holds a Bachelor's degree in Accountancy and a Master’'s degree
of Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

By order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
liquid crystal display products including touch panel products and
electronic consumer products including compact camera module,
personal health care products and electrical devices.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 39.

Interim dividends in aggregate of 7 HK cents per share, amounting
to approximately HK$203,497,000, was paid and payable to the
shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 3
HK cents per share based on the number of ordinary shares in
issue (number of ordinary share issued at 29 February 2016:
2,907,099,398) to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 27 May 2016, amounting to
approximately HK$87,213,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to HK$846,742,000 and furniture, fixtures and equipment
amounting to HK$212,705,000 for the purpose of expanding its
manufacturing capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in
the People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHEE

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2015 were as follows:

ARz A DikEE

R=Z-RF+=A=+—A ARFAHET
B2 BEMT -

2015 2014

—E-HF —ET—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Share premium f& D m B 777,925 777,925
Special reserve BRI G 17,410 17,410
Retained earnings IR & A 35,733 36,086
831,068 831,421

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distributions or paying
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that
immediate following the distribution or paying dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the
Company's subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares
of these companies were acquired by the Company, and the
nominal amount of the Company's shares issued for the
acquisitions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHEE

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Lam Wai Wah

Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang

Non-executive director:
Li Jian Hua (re-designated from an executive director to a
non-executive director since 9 August 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Chung Kam Kwong

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

Heung Kai Sing

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Wong Pong Chun, James, Ip Cho Ting, Spencer
and Heung Kai Sing retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHEE

EEZROREBERDERS

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

At 31 December 2015, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

RZZE—AF+-A=+—H RBRELAQFER
FH MHAERGIE 362 1EFTR T 2 B ae M ATac &% -
IR EMRAREZHITEFR HAZESTAD
BME AN NEBRAERSHERARZER -
EEREBBABREZARNG REBEEA®E 2K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,
were as follows:

Long positions
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

o R AR s T

"R

(a) AAFEREEO0.02BT Z2EBER

Number of issued
ordinary shares

Percentage of

the issued share

capital of

Name of director Capacity held the Company
S ARE: o) LERANEC A=Y £6)
EEHE 14 ZER#E RABDL
%
Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 1,201,422,000 41.33%
MR E=BAA
Held by spouse (note 1) 74,844,000 2.57%
mECERA (1)
1,276,266,000 43.90%
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 15,649,000 0.54%
|mHE EmEAA
Held by spouse (note 2) 1,650,000 0.06%
mEEFAE (f2)
17,299,000 0.60%
Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 6,129,000 0.21%
SREL EmBaA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 12,651,000 0.44%
TR EmBAA
Held by spouse (note 3) 22,500 0.00%
mEcERA (HFE3)
12,673,500 0.44%
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EFEREE

(b)

Notes:

Registered capital of the associated corporation of
the Company
Truly Opto-Electronics Limited (“Truly Shanwei”) (Note 4)

(b) ARQTFMEEEE ZEMES

EREERMBARN R (TEFLE]D (L)

Percentage of
paid up registered

Registered capital capital of Truly

Name of director Capacity contributed (RMB) Shanwei

RUFMELR HEFLEZ#Z

EEnE 54 (AR®) EMELATD L

%

Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 647,360 0.1904
MEE EnlAA

Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 2,590,120 0.7618
=HME EmEAA

Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 647,360 0.1904
SREAE EnlEA

Li Jian Hua (note 5) Interest of corporation 647,360 0.1904

controlled by the director

% (i s) R 2R E

Lam Wai Wah is deemed to be interested in 74,844,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse,
Chung King Yee, Cecilia.

Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 1,650,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by
his spouse, Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 22,500 ordinary shares of the
Company, being the interests held by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan.

Truly Opto-Electronics Limited, a company registered in the People's
Republic of China, is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Registered capital contributed through Lhasa Development Zone Jianyuan
Investment Management Co., Ltd, a company wholly-owned by him.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and

unde

rlying shares of the Company or any of its associated

corporations as at 31 December 2015.
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Share Options

During the year, the Company has not adopted any share option
scheme.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed above under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of Lam Wai Wah, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the
issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

BB

FA - ARAFERATARERESE -

BEROIEZ2ZH

R EX[EEZ iy RARRR D e IPT I ER 2 5 -
AR B R EAEIE QBN FALESEERL
B BEARRIZEFAEBWBARRR M
HAE AN B 2 B SUE 75 MBSz o

FERR

SR EXFABERBEMEERA 2R REXR
NEBREZ M EERAFBEFARFZER
REECZMABET RZE—AF+T_A=1+—
B MIRREMAGARFERARB ZEETT
AR EE 2 BRIt o

"R
AAREREENRETZLEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
S ARE: o) LERANECI A=Y - £6)
REREE &4 LEREE BREBDL
Chan Kin Sun (note) Beneficial owner 158,950,000 5.47%
PR iR (M93T) EnfAA
Held by spouse 54,208,000 1.86%
HECERFA
213,158,000 7.33%

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed to
be interested in 213,158,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has not yet adopted new share option scheme after
the previous share option scheme expired on 21 December 2013.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Model Code

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year
under review in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group's financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal controls. The annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015 has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James has resigned as a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company with effect from 9 August 2015.
Following the changes in the composition, the Audit Committee
comprises Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and
Mr. Heung Kai Sing, with Mr. Chung Kam Kwong as chairman of
the Audit Committee. They meet at least four times a year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Remuneration and Nomination Committees

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance
with the relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees
are chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-
executive director and comprise three other members, namely Mr.
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being independent
non-executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an
executive director of the Company.

26 Truly International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2015

BEREES

AREREREFERTA( TR 257 R
RUBEZEZES  UWERLEEAKEMBHR
EH AREERABES - AEEHE_T
—AFT A=+ -BULEFEZEFEECKR
BERREGEH -

BEHRREECHEARRBERZEGKE - H=
Z-AFENANBRBER - REBEAKEER
EnZBemER L  EHFEEREMA
FHEENK  MEBAETERETERZEGIR -

RESFRLARMNREH -

AEECDRE ELTRAE3IBGEEZS BN
TEENRIBLAREBIEZFERERE - K~
NRARRABEBLIFRTESTA/BIAL

FMEEERREEERS

ARBERET A ZEBARE D BIKLFHIE 8
ERREREEE - ZMEZ B MBI IFANTT
ERERGAELERETE YRR =RHEMKE
BIEE=RERBRBEE B IFRITES) N
REBESLEE (RRABRTES) -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHEE

Corporate Governance

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the
Company is essential to safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders and enhancing the performance of the Group. The
Board is committed to maintain and ensure high standards of
corporate governance. We have complied with all the applicable
code provisions set out in the “Corporate Governance Code”
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015, except for a major deviation as below:

° Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive are not separated and are performed by the
same individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah. The Board will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Company. The Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the Company’s management and believes that this
structure will enable us to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

° Code Provision E.1.2 — The Chairman did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May 2015
due to unexpected important business meeting.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated in
a proper and prudent manner. More details are contained in the
separate Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 36.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,194,000.

Auditors
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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Board of Directors and Board Committees

The Board

The Board was responsible for the Company’s corporate
governance, and was ultimately accountable for the Company’s
activities, strategies and financial performance.

The Board was mainly responsible for formulating and approving
the business strategies, objectives, policies and plans of the
Company, and monitoring the execution of the Company's
strategies. It was also responsible for overseeing the operating and
financial performance of the Company and establishing appropriate
risk control policies and procedures in order to ensure that the
strategic objectives of the Company are materialized. In addition,
the Board was also responsible for improving the corporate
governance structure and enhancing communications with
shareholders.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the execution of
strategies and decision-making for day-to-day operation of the
Company to the management team headed by the Managing
Director, Mr. Lam Wai Wah.

The management reported regularly to the Board on the operating
and financial performance of the Company. Development,
expansion and other major capital expenditure and commitment, as
well as major financing decisions were all reviewed and approved
by the Board.

Connections between members of the Board

None of the members of the Board have any connections (including
financial, business, family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other during the period under review.

Director’s dealing in securities

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with their obligations
regarding dealings in securities under the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules during the period under review.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term
but were subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Association.
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Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards his independence
to the Company and considered that each of the independent non-
executive Directors was independent to the Company during the
period under review.

Directors’ Training

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses. The Company has been
encouraging the directors to participate continuous professional
development courses and seminars organized by professional
institutions or professional firms and reading materials on relevant
topics so that they can continuously update and further improve
their relevant knowledge and skills.

In addition, the Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with written materials.

Board committees

The Board was supported by three Board Committees. Each Board
Committee has its own responsibilities, power and functions. The
chairman of the respective Board Committees reported to the
Board from time to time and made recommendations on matters
discussed when appropriate.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of
reference, which have been revised by the Board on 26 March
2012 pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Remuneration
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam
Kwong, an independent non-executive director and comprise three
other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung
Kai Sing, being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong
Pong Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure of the remuneration of the directors and senior
management and the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the directors for the year are set out in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Four meetings were held during the year by the Remuneration
Committee to review the remuneration packages and assess the
performance of executive directors and the director’'s fees of the
independent non-executive directors. All members of the
Remuneration Committee attended the said meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the nomination committee (the
Nomination Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 and 20
August 2014 pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Nomination
Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong,
an independent non-executive director and comprise three other
members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai
Sing, being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong
Pong Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to any
proposed changes.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
its approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Four meetings were held during the year by the Nomination
Committee to review the nomination procedures and the current
composition of the Board. All members of the Nomination
Committee attended the said meeting.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which have been
revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 and 18 November 2015
pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Audit Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
provide supervision over the Group's financial reporting matters,
internal controls and the system of risk management.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James has resigned as a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company with effect from 9 August 2015.
Following the changes in the composition, the Audit Committee
comprises Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and
Mr. Heung Kai Sing, with Mr. Chung Kam Kwong as chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. All
members of the Audit Committee attended the said meeting.

The Board Meetings, Board Committees Meetings and
General Meeting

The Directors’ attendances at the Board Meetings, the Board
Committees Meetings and General Meeting for the year ended 31
December 2015 were as follows:

%*Z?E@Z ZREARBEHANERASER
AHREE  AMEERERERE -

EHERTECREARRBREZEENE B
Z-AFENANBRBER - REBAKEER
BEnZEghEREL  EHFERERERHA
SAERK - MEREEERERREZEELRE -

FRBERZESRTORER
SREHDHE it
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Number of meetings attended

HEERIRE
General

Board Board Committees Meeting

B EEEZEE BRERE
Director Audit Remuneration Nomination
2= B i R’A
Executive directors:
HITES:
Lam Wai Wah 5 n/a n/a n/a 0
R T EA T iEA iE A
Wong Pong Chun, James 5 4 4 1
=mHIE
Cheung Tat Sang 5 n/a n/a n/a 0
REA TEA N 3E A iE A
Non-executive director:
FHTES :
Li Jian Hua 5 n/a n/a n/a 0
T TEA NiE A TEA
Independent non-executive directors:
BYFHTES:
Chung Kam Kwong 5 4 4 1
BB
Heung Kai Sing 5 4 4 1
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer 5 4 4 1
HEH=F
Total number of meeting(s) held 5 4 4 1
BITEREH
Auditor’'s Remuneration 1% BB 2 B B

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees paid to the
Company'’s external auditors amounted to HK$3,480,000.
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Internal Control

The Board was fully responsible for the maintenance of a sound
and effective internal control system within the Group. Throughout
the year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, the Board
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the internal control
system in all material respects including but not limited to
operational, financial, risk management and compliance controls.
The Group’s system of internal control comprised a well-defined
organizational and management structure with levels and limits of
authority which was established to help achieve business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized access or
disposal, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records to
produce reliable management and financial information for internal
use and for publication purpose, help management mitigate
potential risk factors and ensure compliance with relevant rules and
regulations. The system was designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems so as to achieve the Group's objectives and long-term
goals.

The Group's internal control system comprised the following five
components:

(1) Organizational and Management Structure — the Group has
established an organizational and management structure with
operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibilities
and delegated authority has already been established.

(2)  Authority and Control — the relevant executive Directors and
senior management have been delegated with respective
levels of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy and
policy, contractual commitments and the dealing of price
sensitive information.

(3)  Budgetary Control and Management and Financial Reporting
— budgets have been prepared by senior management
including various department heads and were subject to
review and approval by the executive Directors on a regular
basis prior to being adopted. Operating results against
budgets have been analyzed and reported to the executive
Directors as a reference to monitor the Group's strategy and
policy. Regular reviews by the Audit Committee and audits by
external auditors respectively have been carried out to ensure
the preparation of the management information and
consolidated financial statements are in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group's
accounting policies and applicable laws and regulations.
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(4)  Systems and Procedures — systems and procedures have
been established to identify, measure, manage and control
various risks including business, compliance, operational,
financial and information that may have an impact on the
Group and each major department. Exposure to these risks
was monitored by the executive Directors and the
management with reference to the regular reports produced
by the Audit Committee and the external auditors.

(5)  Internal Audit — the Audit Committee has performed
independent reviews of the controls and risks identified to
ensure that adequate controls have been put in place and risk
elements have been properly addressed.

According to the review results of the Audit Committee for the
year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, the Group's
internal control system is functioning effectively and there was no
significant weakness found in the course of the review processes.
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control systems and is of the opinion that there are no suspected
frauds, irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected
infringement of laws, rules and regulations that cause the Board to
believe that the systems of internal control are ineffective or
inadequate. The Board is satisfied that the Company and the Group
have fully complied with the code provisions on internal control as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the aforesaid year.

Financial Reporting

The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements for the year 2015. The Management also provides all
directors with monthly updates giving them a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIWSE

Company Secretary

The position of Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ma Wai Tong,
CFO of the Group. The Company Secretary reported to the Board
chairman from time to time. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

Since Mr. Ma was appointed in 2011, he has to take no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the financing year
commencing on or after 1 January 2012 and he has fulfilled the
requirement during the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All
resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each shareholder meeting.

Investor Relations

(1) Communication with Shareholders and Procedures
for putting forward proposals at general meetings
All published information, including financial statements,
results announcements, circulars and notices of general
meetings and associated explanatory documents
are promptly posted on the Group’s website at
www.truly.com.hk. Viewers can also send enquiries and
proposals putting forward for shareholders’ consideration at
shareholder meetings to the Board or senior management by
email at enquiry@truly.com.hk or directly by raising questions
at the general meeting of the Company.
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ERELIWE

(2) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the
Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at the general meeting of the
Company may send a written request to the Board of the
Company to request for a EGM. The written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the
purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company’s principle place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general
meetings may follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

(3) Constitutional Documents
There was no change to the Company’'s Memorandum and
Articles of Association during the financial year 2015. A copy
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association is posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the importance of diversity to corporate
governance and the board effectiveness.

The purpose of this policy is to set out the basic principles to be
followed to ensure that the board of directors (the “Board”) has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.

Board nomination and appointments will continue to be made on
merit basis based on its business needs from time to time while
taking into account diversity.

Selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience
and professional experience.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BALIZBE RS &

Deloitte.

B2 - BAERRITSEERT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
58 35/F, One Pacific Place
IE T EE88M 88 Queensway
1"2‘\ AOES 3512 Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to
126, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BALIZEE R S &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
8 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RefARRkEtEZEERR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 « HE—Z—HFE+=-A=+—HILEE

2015 AONYE
—E-HF —ET-mEF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i FHExT FHBT
Revenue Wz 5 19,427,118 21,415,651
Cost of sales SHE AR (17,305,461)  (18,929,229)
Gross profit EF 2,121,657 2,486,422
Other income E At A 7 132,600 124,494
Other gains and losses Hipigzm 8 (107,923) (45,096)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEREREEE
investments (29,821) (7,216)
Administrative expenses THER (410,454) (429,478)
Distribution and selling expenses S RIEEE R (432,511) (395,733)
Finance costs W% E R 9 (102,501) (93,890)
Share of results of associates DIhEEE N R FEE (47,691) (17,502)
Profit before tax TR R 1,123,356 1,622,001
Income tax expense PSR 10 (194,509) (372,725)
Profit for the year NE 1 928,847 1,249,276
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEBA
for the year
Items that may be reclassified AJRER AR EF D IHE
subsequently to profit or loss: EaIEE -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEIRFIEEZ
translation of foreign operations YN Z 58 (456,641) (203,978)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHEHERECATER
investments B8 (52,296) (58,052)
Share of exchange differences arising DGR & & N TIFTE A
on translation of an associate ZHNEZRR 1,164 1,745
(507,773) (260,285)
Reclassification to profit or loss on HAHEERERE
impairment loss of available-for-sale EEEFHOBEEED
investments - 2,743
Total comprehensive income REZE2EB AL
for the year 421,074 991,734
Profit for the year attributable to: IREERFIEAL :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ 2 = /N 845,422 1,118,369
Non- controlling interests e AR fE A 83,425 130,907
928,847 1,249,276
Total comprehensive income AEEZHEBABEERER :
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ 2= /N 357,463 868,017
Non- controlling interests eI = 63,611 123,717
421,074 991,734
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF 15
Basic (HK cents per share) IR (FRE) 29.08 38.41

“ZE—RFFH o SFEBRERAT
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'CIONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R e

_At31 December 2015« R—E—FE+=—A=+—F

2015 2014
—E-&¥

—TmF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
it FHET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R MR 16 6,968,996 6,780,598
Prepaid lease payments TR EFIE 17 181,788 147,966
Intangible assets mpEE 18 - 49
Goodwill B 413 413
Interests in associates NN s o) ey 19 1,223,727 734,843
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 20 76,648 133,500
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE B 30 8,513 8,867
Deposits paid for acquisition of TUEBE - BE MR E
property, plant and equipment SERNH 44,111 138,956
8,504,196 7,945,192
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories e 21 1,775,706 1,511,346
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIA 17 4,850 4,102
Trade and other receivables JrE I BR TE K L i JiE I GRIE 23 5,004,135 5,578,212
Tax recoverable B EE 42,153 26,442
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTA 24 6,265 =
Amount due from an associate i NI E ] 25 768,600 -
Restricted bank deposits SRR FIERTTIE 26 72,656 36,486
Bank balances and cash WRITHEGERIRS 26 2,055,200 3,627,224
9,729,565 10,783,812
Non-current assets held for sale BEIERENIERTEE 27 683 2,524
9,730,248 10,786,336
CURRENT LIABILITIES TE 5
Trade and other payables JE 15T BR T8 J% EL b FE - 5/ 1B 28 5,652,125 5,657,407
Tax liabilities %%IEEE 1,490 31,423
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured T REMETR - EIKE 29 2,882,553 4,568,555
Derivative financial instruments miﬁ T A 24 42,571 33,462
8,578,739 10,290,847
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEERE 1,151,509 495,489
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERRBAE
LIABILITIES 9,655,705 8,440,681
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured 877}z B fihf& 5k - MK 4R 29 2,000,056 868,739
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIERE 30 60,068 48,5683
2,060,124 917,322
7,595,581 7,523,359
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___,-»""66N§_0LIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMERRE

:At‘"éi’ December 2015« R=—T—HFE+=-F=+—H JE———

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FHTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR#E

Share capital A&z 31 58,142 58,142
Share premium and reserves B9 (8 K 7,027,375 7,018,764

Equity attributable to owners of the KRARHEE AEEER
Company 7,085,517 7,076,906
Non-controlling interests IEE AR RS 510,064 446,453
Total equity R 7,595,581 7,523,359

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 126 were FHNRFIBEEFE 126 E 2B HRONR =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 —XF=/F/\BE=FS /ELEETIZE - W H

March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: MUTATREKRERS :
Lam Wai Wah Wong Pong Chun, James
MWEE =L

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EFE

“T-REFH o FAEBRAERIT 4



LIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ImBE=

vear ended 31 December 2015 « BE—Z—FE&+=—A=+—BILEE

Total equity
Capital Investment attributable to Non-
Share Share Special redemption  Exchange Other  revaluation Retained  ownersof controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve profits  the Company interests
|
BBAELR
& RGBEE  HRIRGE EAEERE  MERE  HEERE REEMEGE  REEM BREE  FERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T AT FhL TFhL T T T
note ] note bl
(Bizka) (GE)
At 1 January 2014 R=F-MmE-F-A 58,392 832478 990 617 1,026,669 1,007,390 116,592 3,860,992 6,904,120 322,736 7,226,856
Profitfor the year TR R = = = = = = - 1118369 1,118,369 130907 1,249.276
Other comprehensive income FEERMBRERA
for the year
— Bxchange differences arising on —REENERAES .
translation of foreign operations NEZE - - - - 196,788) - - - (196,788) (7,190) (203,978)
— Exchange differences arising on —RERENRMES
translation of an associate NEEE - - - - 1,745 = = = 1,745 - 1,745
— Fair value loss on available-for- — L ERE
sale investments ATEEER - - - - - - (58,052) = (58,052) = (58,02)
—Reclassification to profitorlosson ~ — EFHEZEA
impairment loss of avaiable-for- AHERERE
sale investments BR - - - - - - 2783 - 2743 - 2743
Total comprehensive income REERTERALE
for the year = = = = (195,043) - (55,309) 1,118,369 868,017 123717 991,734
Transfer EE - - - - - 121822 - (127822) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution ~~ BZAMEZRE
(note 14) (Bt 14) = = = = = - - (bd048  (640428) - (6048
Share repurchased and cancelled BERREHERD (250) (54,450) - 250 - - - (250) (54,700) - (54,700)
Transaction costattributable toshare ~ EEERAEERFHA
repurchased - (103) - - - - - - (103) = (103)
At 31 December 2014 RZ2-IE
+-A=t-A 58,142 777,925 990 867 831,626 1,135,212 61283 4,210,861 7,076,906 446,453 7523359
Profit for the year TEEER - - - - - - - 845,422 845,422 83425 928,847
Other comprehensive income TEEEBZARA
for the year
— Exchange differences arising on —REBERAEL
translation of foreign operations NEER - - - - 436,827) - - - (436,827) (19814)  (456,641)
— Exchange differences arising on —BEBENANEL
translation of an associate NEEE - - - - 1,164 - - - 1164 - 1,164
— Fair value loss on available-for- — R EREZ AT
sale investments [EEsE - - - - - - (52,296) - (52,296) - (52,296)
Total comprehensive income FERRENALE
for the year - - - - 435,663 - (52,296 845,422 357,463 63,611 421,074
Transfer 43 - - - - - 88,623 - (88,623) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ BZAMEZRE
(note 14) (Bt 14) - - - - - - - (8852 (348852) - (38852
At 31 December 2015 R-E2-1F
+-A=1-A 58,142 771925 990 867 395,963 1,223,835 8,987 4,618,808 7,085,517 510,064 7595581
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AeHEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 « HEZ—FE—HF+-A=+—HLFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued for the acquisitions.

Other reserves comprise:

(i) the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve
of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") other than Hong Kong. According to the Articles of
Association of the PRC subsidiaries, a percentage of net profit as
reported in the PRC statutory accounts should be transferred to
the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve
determined at the discretion of the board of directors of these
companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be set off against
accumulated loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can be
used for expansion of production facilities or an increase in
registered capital; and

(ii) difference between the carrying amount of interest in a subsidiary
disposed of and the consideration received arising from the
decrease in equity interest in a subsidiary.

FrhE i TR HB A Bl 2 IR EE B A R B s
BmETZROEERERZZRE -

HiFEEE

(i)

(i)

FEhEARAME ([HE D (TRERE) KL
ZBRRZEEBRHERREEERMER -
RETFEMB AR AMSRAA - HEEE
RENERZANETEOLRBREEAER
HREBLREEBRRFEE  ZEOHLIBEZRER
ANEZEEMIERE  AEBRBRHFEIEER
FHER - MEXERFEHT AN EREER
HESIE MM E A ¢ K&

HE— R E QA 2 B (E B E A Rl
AESRALEEZERBRRERME ZHENE
B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HeleRER

. Forthe year ended 31 December 2015 « BE—E—AE+=-A=+—ALFE

2015 AONYE
—E-HF —ZT -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRR
Profit before tax Fi AT A 1,123,356 1,622,001
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FLEIA (29,599) (39,932)
Interest income from an associate B A A2 F B A (10,701) =
Impairment loss on available-for-sale Al SR E B EE
investments 29,821 7,216
Amortisation of technical know-how BT S S AN s i 49 142
Allowance for doubtful debts RARE A 15,927 1,551
Depreciation and amortisation of property, W - B NMEREITE M
plant and equipment 923,894 758,811
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBRTES HEFRIE 5,287 4,688
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HeE AEmE - BER
plant and equipment By Sp 63,069 31,214
Loss on fair value changes of derivative MTESBTAEZ AT EBEZDEE
financial instruments 14,637 33,971
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held  HERIELEIERBEE 2 i
for sale (1,967) =
Share of loss of associates AEH & A FEE 47,691 17,502
Finance costs MER 102,501 93,890
Dividends from available-for-sale AEEEREZRE
investments - (2,265)
Scrip dividend from available-for-sale AL EERE Z AR B
investments - (17,363)
Operating cash flows before movements in KRt & EE S E A2
working capital KEHERE 2,283,965 2,611,426
Increase in inventories FEEM (287,551) (54,797)
Decrease in trade and other receivables JFEE LT B T % L At AR TR 445,152 246,688
Increase in trade and other payables JE BRI K E b FE A< FRIEAE N 190,227 628,477
Settlement of derivative financial instruments &&E/T4 47T A (11,793) (509)
Cash generated from operations B TEEN TR 2 R & 2,620,000 3,331,285
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBNEH (53,323) (135,456)
PRC withholding tax paid BT BB - (57,443)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERPBEEEMAEH (176,804) (260,127)
Tax paid for other jurisdictions HAh B AR B #TE (434) (4,026)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ZBfERSFHE 2,389,439 2,874,233
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
malenER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 « HE—Z—HFE+=-A=+—HILEE

2015 AONYE
—g-5nFE —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETES
Dividends received from available-for-sale BUATHEERE Z RS
investments - 2,265
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  EEE Y% - BB & BE (1,439,020) (2,178,923)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment BEAHLEERE (25,265) -
Investment in associates R—EBER a2 8E (591,530) (600,480)
Advance to an associate ElEANCIE=E (768,600) =
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, FUEME - BEREBEZ T2
plant and equipment - (82,220)
Additions of prepaid lease payments TS E & SRIEIE AN (48,017) =
Interest received 2 YF B 29,599 39,932
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEDME  BENREFERE
and equipment 2,724 9,396
Proceeds from disposals of non-current HEREREIERBEEMSHIEA
assets held for sale 3,755 =
Placement of restricted bank deposits FHRZREIRITER (254,358) (36,486)
Release of restricted bank deposits R RHIERTTE K 218,188 =
Placement of bank deposits BT HERTTIF 5K - (281,599)
Withdrawal of bank deposits BEBRSRITIF 5K - 281,595
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®REZFEIFFABRLSFE (2,872,524) (2,846,516)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRETMEMES (9,781,297) (8,437,780)
Dividends paid BRE (377,886) (611,420)
Interest paid BEFA (102,501) (93,890)
Payment on repurchase of shares 8 Bl i 1 R IE - (54,803)
New bank and other borrowings raised FERITREMER 9,238,650 10,022,652
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING METEE (TR IERSFH
ACTIVITIES (1,023,034) 824,759
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASHAND B2 RB&ZEEE (H) #MFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,506,119) 852,476
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHIzEERBEEZEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3,627,224 2,805,714

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EREH o HE

CHANGES (65,905) (30,966)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZESRRAESEHEER -

OF THE YEAR,

represented by bank balances and cash BRI F RS 2,055,200 3,627,224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i o MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 « HE—ZE—HE+=-A=+—HILEE

46

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company. The Company is a public limited company with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr.
Lam Wai Wah, who is also the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “General Information” to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars which is different from the functional
currency of the Company, as the directors of the Company
consider that Hong Kong dollars is the most appropriate
presentation currency in view of its place of listing.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“LCD")
products including touch panel products and electronic
consumer products including personal health care products
and electrical devices.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Application of amendments to HKFRSs and a new
Interpretation

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants’
and HKAS 41
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10, Consolidation Exception’
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle’

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future will have impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group's available-for-sale investments. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
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recognition:
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e  Step2: Identify the performance obligations in the e FE-H: HBEAHNPIBENELE
contract

e  Step3: Determine the transaction price o FE=H EBEERSE

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the o FNL: BREGEIEESHF
performance obligations in the contract ZBHEMGR

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity o FRTL RERBETHRBELHEER

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to the
new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not
under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFHBE®)
(continued)
Investments in associates REBE QT 2L

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate is recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at

the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs of disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEBTHHEX®
(continued)
Goodwill maE

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Revenue recognition Wz R

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration HSZETJDAEH&?fHﬂZ1ﬁfEZ/\$TETE§+§ °

received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated WHE G ELEE LR HMmEELE

customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. BhVEE FAR ©

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods BEmZEEWR T ERE RN EREERED

are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the =% H A A MM B R EER SR

following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant ° AEBCEERERE & KER
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; C¥RERTE R

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial . AREBWHEARE —REABEEEESR
involvement to the degree usually associated with HEEmEE TR TR bR

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’'s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
development as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of the
items of property, plant and equipment (other than properties
under development) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEBTHHEX®
(continued)
Foreign currencies Hhik

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 « HE—ZE—HE+=-A=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFHBE®)
(continued)
Taxation BiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including acquired technical know-how with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEBTHHEX®
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued) BELEE (&)
Research and development expenditure mEER

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFHBE®)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) ST HE(E)
Financial assets (continued) EMEE ()

Loans and receivables B RIEWKIE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss of financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments or observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBER@®
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) ST HE(E)
Financial assets (continued) EMEE ()
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREERE (&)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loan receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFHBE®)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) ST HE(E)
Derivative financial instruments fTEemMI A

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimation (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Truly (Hui Zhou) Smart Display Limited (“Truly HZ")
as an associate

Note 19 describes that Truly HZ is an associate of the Group
although the Group has 53% ownership interest and voting
rights in Truly HZ. Other than the Group, there are two other
shareholders in Truly HZ. The directors assessed whether or
not the Group has control over Truly HZ based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Truly HZ unilaterally. Resolutions for relevant
activities of Truly HZ require approval in shareholders’
meetings as stated in the Articles of Association of Truly HZ.
In making their judgement, the directors considered the
requirements for shareholders’ meeting as stated in the
Articles of Association of Truly HZ, in which it states a
shareholders’ meeting cannot be held without the presence
of either one of the other two shareholders, and legal
opinions obtained from an independent lawyer practicing in
the PRC. On this basis, the directors concluded that the
Group does not have control but significant influence over
Truly HZ because any resolutions to be passed in
shareholders’ meetings shall have the consent from either
one of the other shareholders demonstrated by their action of
being present in the meetings. Accordingly Truly HZ is
classified as an associate of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification of HT N Z I RHFH AR A A ("M BRI ") as an
associate

Note 19 describes that #1 /1l Z 4T &+ is an associate of the
Group although the Group only owns 12.5% ownership
interest in A& YT R . The Group has significant influence
over MM EATFHF by virtue of the contractual right to appoint
one out of the five directors to the board of directors of that
company.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its trade and bills
receivables at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether those trade receivables have suffered an impairment
loss. Management has exercised judgement when estimating
the timing and future cash flows expected to be derived from
the trade receivables and ascertain their future cash flows.
Where the future cash flows of a receivable is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss will be
provided for such a receivable and recognised in the profit
and loss.

As detailed in note 23, as at 31 December 2015, trade and
bills receivables amounting to HK$4,694,937,000 (2014
HK$5,048,360,000) are expected to be settled within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. In determining
the amount of receivable, the management has exercised
judgement in estimating the timing and future cash flows to
be recovered and determined no impairment was necessary
at the end of the reporting period. If the actual cash flows or
timing of recovery are different from expectation, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Estimated outcome of a litigation

As at 31 December 2015, a subsidiary of the Company is a
defendant in a legal action in Italy involving the alleged
defective goods manufactured by the subsidiary according to
its customers’ designs and specifications. The claim against
the subsidiary is approximately Euro 7.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$61 million) in aggregate. The directors
believe, based on legal advice, that the case has legal and
factual grounds to defend and therefore it is not probable that
losses (including claims for costs) will be incurred. As a result,
no provision has been made at the end of the reporting period
in this regard.
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5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of sales
tax, trade discounts and returns, and is analysed as follows:

Wz

WRIEFAEmIHE 2 B W R B PAERIE
BEHNRHEEY  BSWENRRE - Hfm
T

2015 2014

—B-HFf —TQmF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

Sales of LCD products HERmBE TS Em 16,067,993 18,639,879
Sales of electronic consumer products HEETHEER 3,359,125 2,875,772
19,427,118 21,415,651

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance focuses on the sales of different types of
products. Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market rates. Thus the Group is currently organised into two
operating segments which are sales of LCD products and
electronic consumer products. The information for each
operating segment is as follows:

LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD
products and touch panel products

Electronic — manufacture and distribution of
consumer electronic consumer products such as
products compact camera module, personal

health care products and electrical
devices
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

6. PEER @

PHENERES
NEBILRLERBFEDBE DS R EE
DITER ¢

BEz=

B-HEF+-A=t+—ALFRE

Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total Eliminations Consolidated
HER g7
BREEM HEEM PEAR b4 &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TEx TR TR
REVENUE 0§
External sales H1EH 16,067,993 3,359,125 19,427,118 - 19,427,118
Inter-segment sales DEREE - 326,813 326,813 (326,813) -
16,067,993 3,685,938 19,753,931 (326,813) 19,427,118
RESULT £ |
Segment result DERE 1,329,844 37,436 1,367,280 (5450) 1,361,830
Finance costs Bi5 &R (102,501)
Unallocated expenses ROBERZ (135,973)
Profit before tax FANERH 1,123,356
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z-—NF+-A=t+—HLFE

Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total  Eliminations  Consolidated
B E7
BRREM BEEM LT #3H e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
REVENUE e
External sales IhSH 18,639,879 2875772 21,415,651 - 21,415,651
Inter-segment sales DIEREE - 397,586 397,586 (397,586) -
18,539,879 3,273,358 21,813,237 (397,586) 21,415,651
RESULT ES
Segment result GECES 1,689,436 97,051 1,786,487 (14,588) 1,771,899
Finance costs BM%ER (93,890)
Unallocated expenses RAWHAZ (56,008)
Profit before tax FAnE 1,622,001
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuec)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments, finance costs and share of results of associates.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Other information
For the year ended 31 December 2015

PEER &)

DR RE (E)
LENBENE T HREMFIME 2 AKE
BEIBE B - 2 aENERD BRI R RTT
BEEKAE BEFHE TEERTARF
BEZPERE PHERLKIEBEQRE
BHEDBAREUER - L RRAEEZER
REREUD R ERMHERBNFETE

BE_Z-AF+-A=t—-HLEFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Consolidated

RAE £

BTrERER HBEM ma

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Amounts included in the measure =& % 48 % Fll

of segment profits: FrEiEa e
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7 & K # &4
Loss on disposal/write off of e MEE
property, plant and equipment  EiE R iR 2 BB

Allowance for doubtful debts AR

FTET FET FET

801,206 122,737 923,943
57,328 5,741 63,069
15,927 - 15,927

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BUREREm

BE_2-NFE+-A=t—HLFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products  Consolidated

R ¥

HEEmM R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TAT FTATT

Amounts included in the measure =t& % %8 % Fl

of segment profits: FIeEr ek :
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7 & K # &4
Loss on disposal/write off of B MEE
property, plant and equipment  JBE K i&RfE 2 E1E

Allowance for doubtful debts AR

635,456 123,497 758,953
23,905 7,309 31,214
1,551 = 1,551

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are
not regularly reviewed by chief operating decision maker.

HROBEERABYIFAEBLERKSE
EHEH KU BUZFEENARETH
E o
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EFETZRA=T-RLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEER @
Geographical information HEER

The following table sets out information about (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers by location of customers
and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets by location of assets.

TR () AREIRET AT E D EHIN
BB P U K (i) AR IR B A P A M R 0 4R
HIZERENEEMNER o

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
INERE P W ax FRBEE
2015 2014 31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E—FEF —[gF
+=A +=A
—E-HFE —T—NNF =t+—H =+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET THET FET
PRC R X 14,634,342 16,401,624 8,357,052 7,702,113
South Korea FEE 2,250,079 2,720,132 - =
Hong Kong B 539,864 535,245 61,983 100,712
Japan SN 369,929 526,291 - =
Europe BOM 1,013,792 470,154 - =
Others Hib 619,112 762,205 - -
19,427,118 21,415,651 8,419,035 7,802,825
Notes: BiE -
(1) Regarding revenue arising from sales to external customers in (1) SRR B BOM R E A ib [E SN2 5 19 85 & Weas it

Europe and others, no individual countries are material and hence
separate disclosure is not required.

T EEEREREEEAGE L E27]
BIHBER o

(2)  Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments and (2) FERBDEETEEAHLEREREEREE
deferred tax assets. E o
Information about major customers FEEFER

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

RBAEFEHARBEHERETRMEBEB10%
ZEPYEINT

2015 2014

—B-HF —T-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHAT

Customer A e 3,053,724  N/ATEMA?

Customer B! TR N/AFER? 3,430,009

1 Revenue from LCD products 1 RERBEATNRERZKE

2 Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total sales of 2 KEEE ZWES DN AR EFLAEEZTE10%

the Group
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rended 31 December 2015 « HE-E—HE+—A=+—HILEE = :
s
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HalkA
2015 2014
—E—5F —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income includes: EgABLE -
Government grants (note 37) BRAT AL (FTFE37) 53,674 19,944
Interest income FE YA 29,599 39,932
Interest income from an associate B A% N T F S A 10,701 -
Rental income LW A 11,350 10,291
Compensation income BEE U A 42 8,023
Dividends from available-for-sale A HERE RS
investments - 19,628
Sundry income FETEUL A 27,234 26,676
132,600 124,494
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMER
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
Loss on fair value change of foreign SNEIRHR N T EE
currency swaps 5 E B 1E 13,989 25,714
Foreign exchange gain on bank loan in SBITIRITERZ
Australian dollars HINGE U 25 (20,954) (23,576)
(6,965) 2,138
Loss on fair value change of structured EEMEINEREATEE
foreign currency options EE) R 1R 648 8,257
Net foreign exchange loss YNE 18 F 5 37,211 1,936
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HeE MEEmE - BER
plant and equipment Bz BB 63,069 31,214
Allowance for doubtful debts RAREE 15,927 1,551
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERELEFERBERE
held for sale ZWEs (1,967) =
107,923 45,096
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Fortheyearended 31 December2015 ¢« BE—ZE—FHF+=-_A=+—HLEFE . g——

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIEHR

2015 2014
—E—HF

—T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Interest on bank and other borrowings ATRAFREEZRITR

repayable within five years HnfEsR 2z FE 102,501 93,890
0. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTEHBEXX
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Current tax: ZHAFR I
Hong Kong BB 20,218 67,709
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RIS 157,724 247,466
Other jurisdictions HAh R ARE R 434 4,026
178,376 319,201
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFERETR (BEREE) -
Hong Kong B (698) (6,358)
PRC H 4,992 10,983
4,294 4,625
Net withholding tax paid BB S FEE - 57,443
Deferred tax (note 30) PEIEREIE (FI5E30) 11,839 (8,544)
Income tax expense for the year REFMEHES 194,509 372,725

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Income tax arising in the PRC and other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, two
of the Company's PRC subsidiaries were approved as Hi-
Tech Enterprise and entitled to 15% PRC enterprise income
tax for three years from 2012 to 2014. The PRC subsidiaries
were granted the status of Hi-Tech Enterprise in 2015 by the
relevant government and is now in the process of applying an
extention of the preferential tax treatment for further three
years with effect from 1 January 2015. The Group expected
that the preferential tax treatment would be granted and
accordingly, PRC Enterprise Income Tax is provided at 15%
for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M E RN

Fortheyearended31December2015'@1—7 AF+ZA=+—BLFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FREHEBEXZ (&)
Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT BEPRCEMESFREZ(HPRCEMRER
Law of PRC"”) and the Detailed Implementation Rules, ,ﬁj)&,j@{lﬂﬁuiﬁﬁu BE-_EENFE—F—
distribution of the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries IS N TR 11195 VAP 2y /N1 14
since 1 January 2008 to holding companies incorporated in EF'IBH%’&T%%HXZ@T'JM&5%Z # A
Hong Kong is subject to PRC withholding tax at the applicable R B IBIE o

tax rate of 5%.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the REEZEHASYEGEEERERZH
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of Bl A 2 SR ¢
comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—uF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Profit before tax T BiE A 1,123,356 1,622,001
Tax at the average income tax rate of LSRR 15.64%
15.64% (2014: 15.60%) (ZZE—4F : 15.60% ) #r b1 175,653 253,098
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for <A 0L 37 7 Bt 75 o7 2
tax purpose 18,804 58,747
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAEMBRUWA Z TRETE
purpose (29,496) (5,511)
Underprovision in respect of prior years BAEFEBRETE 4,294 4,625
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERR GBS & 6,615 3,481
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR RER 2 MIGEE
recognised (660) -
Underprovision of withholding tax in R B BB A B TR R B T R
respect of PRC subsidiaries - 28,598
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings 1 B[t B A 5l & 9 K & 7
of PRC subsidiaries 2B 24,264 20,996
Tax effect of dividends from available-for- At HERE 7R B2
sale investments Hig B - 3,926
Others Hih (4,965) 4,765
Income tax expense for the year REZEHRAX 194,509 372,725
Note: The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2015 Mz BEz—E—RER-_ZFT—NFE+—_A=+—H
and 2014 represents the weighted average tax rate of the \HEE 2 FHFRE R RSB ER TS F2E
operations in different jurisdictions on the basis of the relevant HEZEEENEER R E Y TR AEER
amounts of profit before taxation and the relevant rate for the year. IS MEFHFIR o
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" _fbrthe year ended 31 December 2015 + BE—F—HFT=A=+—ALLFE —

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. ZXEEZR
2015 2014
—E—5F —ET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT T
Profit for the year has been arrived at NEE R A TR BR A T & IH R
after charging: E
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EREN N & 3,480 3,480
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR 2 FERA
expenses 14,666,319 16,172,905
Research and development costs TR B X 2 RS R AN
recognised as an expense 754,847 803,121
Depreciation and amortisation on: AN EIB 28 R
Property, plant and equipment ME - REME 923,894 758,811
Technical know-how Rl = 2 A 49 142
923,943 758,953
Operating lease rental in respect of rented B EW 7 &L LHS
premises 6,867 8,998
Release of prepaid lease payments R TR E R IE 5,287 4,688
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BINA  BIEESHG :
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits Ha MEMEF 1,843,699 1,840,205
Retirement benefits scheme R FIET B3R
contributions 190,773 188,557

2,034,472 2,028,762
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is
as follows:

(a) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EERTHEATZME

RIBERETRANERRFUEIIRBEFANES
RATHRABE 2 BEmT

(a) BMTES

Lam Wong
Wai Wah Pong
(Chairman Chun, Cheung LiJian Hua
and James Tat Sang (Production
Managing  (Executive  (Marketing Managing
Director) Director) Director) Director)
WEE TR
(€3:9% REL (£EB
= R (WEHEE = k]
mgE) (BTES) =) #gE) —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TR TEx TR TR
Fees ne - - - _ _
Other emoluments: HibE 4 -
Salaries and other benefits %4 K 27 3,897 1,903 2,487 672 8,959
Performance related BREA 2 e
incentive (KizE)
payments (note) 16,459 7,722 3,942 163 28,286
Contributions to retirement  RARIEFIEH 2] 3k
benefit scheme 36 36 36 6 114
Sub-total INet 20,392 9,661 6,465 841 37,359

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

FRATRATEEZHEERZRES
REEARBRAKEEHEEREER
Bz -
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERTHEARMNE @)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (b) HHITES
Li Jian
o [TE:}
(Production
Managing Total
Director) 2015
EE
(EEZP wm
EEAKHE) “E-EHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we
Other emoluments: HitBi € :
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 443 443
Performance related incentive EAFRIREG 2 828 (PRE)
payments (note) 107 107
Contributions to retirement benefit R B 5R
scheme 4 4
Sub-total /NET 554 554
The non-executive director's emolument shown above AR ATES CHMEERZ /K
was mainly for his service as director of the Company MIEEARATKENE AT =ESFIE
or its subsidiary. AR 2 % ©
(c) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (c) BIYFHITES
Chung Ip Cho
Kam Ting, Heung Total
Kwong Spencer Kai Sing 2015
ot
SRk #HZ ERH —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F&T F#&xT FET
Fees e
Other emoluments: HEmH<
Salaries and other e MEMEF]
benefits 264 132 132 528
Performance related HRIDEE 2 RS
incentive payments - - -
Contributions to RIRBFET B R
retirement benefit
scheme - - -
Sub-total /N5 264 132 132 528
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year ended 31 December 2015 « HE-E—HE+=—A=+—HILEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

HK$'000
TR

Total 4t

12. EERTHEARMNE @)

(c) BIAFMTESH)
LRI BMYIFRTEEF I MEER

REREERAREZREHRE 2
M -

38,441

(a) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(a) BITES

Lam Wong
WEIEN Pong
(Chairman Chun, Cheung Li Jian Hua
and NENTES Tat Sang  (Production
Managing (Executive  (Marketing Managing Total
Director) Director) Director) Director) 2014
MEE RiEE TEE
(XBR BHE (% (EEHEE Eo ]
EXRLE) (BTES) HEEES) ) —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHL TAT TR T
Fees e - - - - -
Other emoluments: HiHi4 -
Salaries and other benefits % & R E &7 3,623 1,916 2,482 1,136 9,057
Performance related BREBN 25
incentive payments (Hi3E)
(note) 3,412 1,716 2,400 377 7,905
Contributions to retirement R{NEFEH 242
benefit scheme 34 34 34 - 102
Sub-total INEt 6,969 3,666 4,916 1,513 17,064

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

FRATRATETIHEERREE
REEARBRAKEEHEREER
Bz
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERTHRERZNE 2
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (b) BIUFEHITES
Chung Ip Cho
Kam Ting, Heung Total
Kwong Spencer Kai Sing 2014
—T-mF
ER HEH=F B HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHIT FAT
Fees we 264 132 132 528
Other emoluments: Hib & :
Salaries and other e REAER
benefits = = = =

Performance related HERIBE 7 EE

incentive payments = = = =

Contributions to RIRERFT B
retirement benefit
scheme = = = =
Sub-total NEE 264 132 132 528
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments FHMATREYIENITEE M EE
shown above were mainly for their services as directors RBEREERNAGEERIRHRE 2
of the Company. B o
HK$'000
FHTT
Total st 17,592
Note: The performance related incentive payments are based on fisk : BRIBEMIZBES IRBEHE—_T—F
the remuneration approved by the remuneration committee ERZZE-—NFET_A=T—HIEFE
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. FTMEEeIECHNEEE
Mr. Lam Wai Wah is also the Chief Executive of the Company MEZERENMEBRNRRITHAR  BREX
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for WEE 2 BIERIEATTRARFIRERSE
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. 2 o
Mr. Li Jian Hua has been re-designated from an executive HE_Z—AF+-_A=+—HIEFE " ?r—‘
director to a non-executive director of the Company during Eﬁf‘ﬁiﬁﬂ$ AIMITEFAERIEBIT
the year ended 31 December 2015. Eo
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived (2T —AFR-E—NOF+_A=+—
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2015 BIEFE - BETBERSEREZESREK
and 2014. BREMME -
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13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included four (2014: three), directors and the chief executive,
details of whose remunerations are set out in note 12 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one
(2014: two) highest paid employee who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

13.

LTERESHFMES

FR - AEERESESFMEE2FENA(Z
T-NEF: ZR)EFRTRES - H#S
HBFER EXME12 FR HBE—HK (=
T-OF: MB)ALFARAESHITERA
RzRRHMEE ZMESF BT

2015 2014

—E—AF —T—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e AT 1,736 3,336

Performance related incentive payments ~ EERIBHME ~ 184 490 3,543
Contributions to retirement benefit RN FET B3R

scheme 18 31

2,244 6,910

Their emoluments were within the following bands: ERAREME Z2EBNT :

2015 2014
—E¥-HFf C—T-AF

Number of Number of
employees employees

(L EE2HE

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /87T % 2,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 8 7T, % 5,000,000 % 7T - 1
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14. DIVIDENDS

86

14. B2

2015 2014
—E-a¥

—TmE
HK$'000
FET

HK$'000
FET

Dividend recognised as distribution during AFEEER AN IR ZIKE

the year:

2015 Interim dividend of 7 HK cents (2014 —Z—REHHIRG B4 L& 73510

Interim dividend of 10 HK cents) per

(ZF—OFErHREAH

share FH107810) 203,497 290,912

2014 Final dividend of 5 HK cents (2013 == — P4 AR AR S G 5745111
final dividend of 12 HK cents) per share (ZE—=FRERSEFR12551) 145,355 349,616
348,852 640,428

The 2015 interim dividend in aggregate of 7 HK cents per
share amounting to approximately HK$203,497,000 of which,
HK$58,142,000 and HK$87,213,000 were paid in September
and December 2015 and HK$58,142,000 were payable in
2016 to shareholders on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on 9 June 2015, 28 August
2015 and 8 December 2015, based on 2,907,099,398 ordinary
shares in issue.

The final dividend of 3 HK cents per share based on
2,907,099,398 ordinary shares amounting to approximately
HK$87,213,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: final dividend of 5 HK cents per share based on
2,907,099,398 ordinary shares, in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014) has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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::Forthg,yé‘arended31December2015-§=_7 EF+ZA=+—HILFE

-

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share

of the Company)

RANGEERER KR
BE RN 2R

(Profit for the year attributable to owners (AR F#HEA A

JEAE N F Z 8 A1)

. BRER

BREANEERNIIRE NHIZEAE

23

2015 2014
—E-a%

—E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

845,422 1,118,369

Number of shares

Lo 24=

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share

RN ESRERNRE RN 2
BB Nt 15 8

2,907,099 2,911,512

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share has been adjusted for the
share repurchase during the year ended 31 December 2014.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no
significant potential ordinary shares outstanding at the end of
the reporting date.

SAEEREREN 2 EBENEFHHCR
RBE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—HLEFEZ
B An BB EIfE AR

AR RERLBEEXNBAECRITEBM -
BW B SREERT
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRZR®E

Leasehold  Furniture, Properties
land and fixtures and Plant and Motor under
buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles development

ARt -
BBT KERRE HERES RE RRRNE ae
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AL AL AL AL AL AL

COST RA&
At 1 January 2014 R-E-ME-F—H 1,362,622 740260 7,628,758 41,550 151,061 9,924,151
Currency realignment G (23,394) (16,125) 180,665) (484) 6,551) (227,219)
Additions RE - 348,072 1,695,608 5,235 147,06 2,195,971
Disposals/write off e/ (11) (123)  (142,812) (8.215) - (151,161)
Transfers AR 72,063 - - - (72,063) -
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-ME+-A=+—-A 1411180 1,072,084 9,000,889 38,086 219503 11,741,742
Currency realignment EREE (53,852) (50,831) 438,561) (1,051) (48,829) (593,124)
Additions RE 73,794 212,705 846,742 1,133 403,155 1,537,529
Disposals/write off L& /s (580) (222) (210,902) (1,847) - (213,551)
Transfers AR 42,359 = = = (42,359) =
At 31 December 2015 W=E—-RF+-A=+-H 1472901 1233736 9,198,168 36,321 531,470 12,472,596
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014 R=F-ME-FA—A 267,321 410211 3,697,961 31,365 - 4,406,858
Currency realignment EBRE (3,996) (8,322) (81,332) (324) - (93,974)
Provided for the year EERE 35,476 57,701 661,359 4,275 = 758,811
Eliminated on disposals/iwrite off & /#3543 4) (50) (103,331) (7,166) = (110,651)
At 31 December 2014 WZB-ME+-A=+-H 298,797 459,540 4,174,657 28,150 - 4,961,144
Currency realignment EHHE (10,065) (22,708) (200,102) (805) - (233,680}
Provided for the year FEERE 37,303 117,620 765,682 3,289 = 923,894
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite off & /Hid4¥iss (319) (95) (145518 (1,826) - (147,758)
At 31 December 2015 W-B-RE+-A=t-H 325716 554,357 4,594,719 28,808 - 5,503,600
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 RZB-RE+-A=t-H 114718 679,379 4,603,449 7,513 531,470 6,968,996
At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME+-A=+-H0 111238 612,544 4,826,232 9,936 219503 6,780,598
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Forthg,yé‘arendedm December 2015 « BE-—ZE—RF+-_A=+—HLEFE —
e = = =
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BMERRKE @)
(continued)
Notes: M 3T
(a) The cost of leasehold land and buildings is depreciated over forty (a) THE L RIEF 7 A 2N A B AR R DA PO+ F 5
years or the terms of the respective leases, whichever is the HEAHEFH(UREE AL INE -

shorter, using the straight-line method.

The other items of property, plant and equipment, other than HEm%E WMELREGZER (BERTYE
properties under development, are depreciated on a reducing SN ABREEIRROE - IRA T FRFERE -
balance method at the following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 20% FRIFL - B RRE 10% £20%
Plant and machinery 11% to 15% WE M 1% Z15%
Motor vehicles 25% to 30% AE 25% 2 30%

(b) The carrying value of the Group's property interests shown above (b) AR EB Y ERER Z FEEESE
comprises:

2015 2014
—Z2—8F —T—lF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAT

Leasehold properties in Hong Kong held under 1R EIFANEETBEHA 2

medium-term leases HEME 14,937 15,474
Properties in the PRC held under medium- RARRERANEFREREEZ
term leases mE 1,663,718 1,316,412
1,678,655 1,331,886
17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ANEERE
2015 2014
—B-HF —T@mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEBEMHEERESRE :
comprise:

Land use rights in the PRC held under BIEFPBEOEFRES 2

medium-term leases + b {5 R A 186,638 152,068

Analysed for reporting purposes as: TIESRE DT ¢
Non-current asset IERBEE 181,788 147,966
Current asset mENEE 4,850 4,102
186,638 152,068
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. ML EE
Technical
know-how
TS 2 A3
HK$'000
FHTT
COST R
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZZE—HFE—H—H RZZT—NF
31 December 2015 +—A=t—HBR-Z—RF
+=-A=+—H Loz
AMORTISATION oK
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—lMHFE—HA—H 23,039
Provided for the year FERBE 142
At 31 December 2014 R-_E—NFE+_—_A=+—H 23,181
Provided for the year FEREE 49
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—hF+_H=1+—H 23,230
CARRYING VALUES ARTEE
At 31 December 2015 R—E—RFE+-_A=+—8H -
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—ME+-_A=+—H 49
Technical know-how are amortised on a straight-line basis TR T AT F# - SiEE AN
over 4 years. 4 o
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REE QRN ER
2015 2014
—®-HE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
Cost of investments in associates — REFERRIMEERAR — FE LT
unlisted 1,341,592 750,600
Share of results and other comprehensive {5 245 & Hith 2 E R =
expense (62,283) (15,757)
Exchange difference arising on translation & 7 A4 7 JNE Z= %8 (55,582) -

1,223,727 734,843
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REEE R RRIER (2)

Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

AEBRRERROBERRFBET ¢

Principal
place of
operation
TEEX
it R 3

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group  Principal activities
rEEREZ
PR R R 2 L 4l
2015 2014
—8-1EF —T-MF

Class of
shares

Place of
registration

Form of
entity

Name of entity

EELR L b iguEcbil IREH

Truly HZ Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered 53% 53% Development and
EHEM AL F F capital (Note1)  (Note1)  production of
HfEA (FfzE1)  (PFEE1)  semiconductor
products
REREETERER
MBS R Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered 12.5% - Development and
B AYA F R capital (Note 2) production of
afEA (KiEE2) intelligent camera
FERAEERIEK
Note 1: According to the Articles of Association of Truly HZ, MizE1 . BREEABMNOBALEERME  FEEH
shareholders’ meeting cannot be held without the presence of BRZIREED —ZHRENER TNRITR
either one of the other two shareholders. The directors of the BARE RABEZTRBEZIERT » K
Company consider that the Group does not have control but EEESHEMNITEmITEE . EH5EAY
only significant influence over Truly HZ under such a term Z5 EEMRKREAS FEBHRESR
because any resolutions to be passed in shareholders’ meetings BRHBIRREAF —ZEEESERELERT
shall have the consent from either one of the other GE o EItk - ERIEMN D58 5K EFHEGE
shareholders demonstrated by their action of being present in NG
the meetings. Truly HZ is therefore classified as an associate of
the Group.
On 11 November 2014, {55 BEER AR (“FHFEE"), RZE—WF+—A+—8 ' ARRIZH
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered ErENBAREMLtERZER AT (E
into a capital increase agreement with the other two FlgEas |) B H i 2 AR R (BIRR R 17 a5
shareholders, being original parties to the shareholders BREZIATT) SN EE % - LA I E A
agreement, to increase the registered capital of the associate. AlZAMER - BIFEEGZ - EHFE
Pursuant to the capital increase agreement, {738 and the BREMMEREREBEASE QR Z M
other two shareholders agreed to increase the registered capital BARH AR 1,132,000,000 TEMEAR
of the associate from RMB1,132,000,000 to RMB #2,000,000,000 7T °
2,000,000,000.
Note 2:  The Group is able to exercise significant influence over FT/IZ& MizE2 : BARANEEAERENESI R 2 848

4T ®} $ because it has the power to appoint one out of five
directors of that company under the Articles of Association of
that company.

BRAASE—RESEARANTAE
2 RARETHRARGEEAY
&7
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

92

Summarised financial information of material
associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

'I'\II.OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. REEE N TINER 2

EXBEQTNHBEERHE

BRAAREEEABEARNMEER B ESR
ST » AT IS BRI RIERRE B 7
¥ o5 22 B P A LBt 2 ) R BA TS SRR U PR
T -

BERRDNERAERGHEN N FHRA MK
BRARR -

Truly HZ R
2015 2014
—F-RF —ZT-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current assets MENEE 1,378,644 483,823
Non-current assets EMENEE 4,626,551 1,187,022
Current liabilities mBAE (2,255,650) (284,349)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (1,473,902) -
Loss for the year AEFE 518 (89,446) (33,022)
Other comprehensive income for the year ZN4E & H fih 2 WA 4,013 3,292
Total comprehensive expense for the year NG E 2 H G x A2%8 (85,433) (29,730)
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.

Summarised financial information of material
associate (continued)

Truly HZ (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

REEE N TINER (&)
BEABEATNNNBEEREE(£)

EREM ()
J:Lﬁﬁ%éﬂﬁi%ﬁi#&“

BT ERR NHER
BIMERMBREELRNOT

2015 2014

—E-hF —Pa4

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Net assets of Truly HZ EMEMNEEFE 2,275,643 1,386,496
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRMEFIEMNAE

interest in Truly HZ Fir 78 #e#E %5 L A 53% 53%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in - ZN & B Mz FIE N &

Truly HZ R EREE 1,206,091 734,843

Information of associate that is not material

TEANBELATNER

PN ST R B BT R
2015 2014
—B-EF —T-MNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
The Group'’s share of loss from operations 7 £ [ fE {5 48 & 518 (284) =
The Group's share of total comprehensive ZN£=[E fE(E 2 F L 4458

expense (284) =

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in N5 B B 2N R E R A BRE(E
the associate 17,636 -

“E—REER o SFEEERAT
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

94

20. JHHEHERE

2015 2014
—E—5F —T-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Listed investments: EmRE
— Equity shares listed in Taiwan (note a) — R& & M 2 251D (M5Ea) 59,190 133,500
— Equity shares listed in Hong Kong — REB LT 2Rk (HEb)
(note b) 16,881 -
76,071 133,500
Unlisted equity shares, at cost (note c) FEETRREMRMD GREAE) (FsEc) 18,624 10,500
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERREESE (18,047) (10,500)
577 -
Total Rk 76,648 133,500
Notes: MiaE
(a) The investments represent equity interests in companies (a) RERBEENEBITMASE A T H & A #E
incorporated in Taiwan with their registered shares listed on the W RERANRNEREERR ST LM
Taiwan Stock Exchange, which are stated at fair value. The fair Wi A F(BESEE - FHRRAZENAEEBE
value of listed equity securities is determined based on quoted BRRERBFRGFARATHEABETE °
market bid price available from the relevant stock exchange. During BEE_ZE—FREt+-_A=1+—HItEE O
the year ended 31 December 2015, fair value loss of RAF{BEEE 552,296,000 7T (=ZZF—
HK$52,296,000 (2014: HK$58,052,000) has been recognised. 4 : 58,052,000/ 7T) ©
(b) The investment represent equity interest in a company with its (b) IS BN —E AT IR AR - LA TR
shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, which is stated at BB EH » WIRATFEESE - &
fair value. The fair value of listed equity security is determined TMRAZBLENALBEZREBELRZ ST
based on quoted market bid price available from the relevant stock RAMBEAEBERE - BHE-T—AF+=A
exchange. During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment =+—HIFE  EMRBRERE 22,274,000
loss of HK$22,274,000 has been recognised. BT e
(c)  The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued by (c) ZREBEEBARAEFAEEBEITHIELTE

private entities in Japan and Taiwan. The investments are stated at
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
directors had assessed the future cash flows expected to be
generated and an impairment loss of HK$7,547,000 has been
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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NOT S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. INVENTORIES 21. 7
2015 2014
—E-hF —ET—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Raw materials R K 618,143 544,693
Work in progress TERR 170,524 239,947
Finished goods IR TR 987,039 726,706
1,775,706 1,511,346

22. LOAN RECEIVABLE

22. ERER

2015 2014

—E-AF —le

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FABT

Interest-free loan receivable R BEWER 24,762 24,762
Less: allowance for loan receivable W RN E (24,762) (24,762)
The directors have assessed the expected future cash flows RZE—RAFR-_FT—NF+_A=+—
to be generated and allowance for loan receivable was fully B - %%E%%Tﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂ—r&iZiﬁIfﬁém

provided against the carrying amount as at 31 December 2 BEREEEREGHEEREREE -

2015 and 2014.

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EWERIE Kk HAibEUNFIE

2015 2014
—E-HF — PO
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade and bills receivables FEUGBRTE K FE W Z 4% 4,713,490 5,056,572
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERRE (18,553) (8,212)
4,694,937 5,048,360

Other receivables, deposits and H bW EIE -« e RIBMN A
prepayment 309,198 529,852
Total trade and other receivables JE Y BR 18 % B e W R IE 48 R 5,004,135 5,578,212

—T-TEER o ERNEMERAT 95



P
P
=
-

SARBEHRENE

g ” : —
" _Fortheyear ended 31 December 2015 » BE—F—AF+=A=+—RILFE

o~ e
P e

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers. Included in trade and bills receivables
are bills receivables with the carrying amount of
HK$530,561,000 (2014: HK$498,790,000). The amounts are
unsecured, interest free and with a maturity period ranging
from 30 to 90 days.

Included in the other receivables is other PRC tax recoverable
of HK$208,418,000 (2014: HK$413,391,000).

The Group's trade and bills receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

,N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—
23. EWREREMEWFIE®)

AEEHRTHESZEFNTIENATE
ZIEEH - BRREREREEASIERT
{8 %530,661,000/% w( = & — [0 F:
498,790,000/8 7T ) 2 R EIE - % B B E
IR - BB REERHBR N F30E90H T -

o 4th i Uk SRIE N B E E At AR B AT Uk [ A IR
208,418,000 7 ( —Z—PO4E : 413,391,000
BIT) e

AEBNFHEEEREEREIAINZER
B FEYSRA R B EEIIT

2015 2014

—¥-HF —FT0OF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Denominated in HK dollars LA TTRHE 17,572 21,582
Denominated in Euro AR TTEHE 958 15,664

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, net of the allowance for doubtful debts at

R B 2 R KRR T B K 4 (R 3% B
REBEAMEF)) RRERE BB
T -

the reporting date:

2015 2014

—B-Rf —TE

Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivables receivables Total receivables receivables Total
EKEE EREE CH BRERE  EREER CEHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
Within 60 days 60 BA 3,079,486 366,465 3,445,951 3,268,464 422,552 3,691,016
61 to 90 days 61290H 639,364 99,142 738,506 813,008 39,400 852,408
More than 90 days BB H 445,526 64,954 510,480 468,098 36,838 504,936
4,164,376 530,561 4,694,937 4,549,570 498,790 5,048,360
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. FEURBRIE % E b FE U FRIE ()

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit
rating limits for each customer. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. 88% (2014: 82%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired having
settlement subsequent to the reporting date and with no past
history of defaults in payment.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$510,216,000 (2014:
HK$815,608,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade and bills receivables which are past
due but not impaired

REMTEHEL  AEESTHEER
FrZEEEERBESREF ZEEFHRE
B TRFZEERESFEE K- R
REBHEER 8% (T —MF :82%)
ZIEWERIES R BERRE - BiBAETEE
RECEE °

AEE2RUBEEEAGANBREAR
1 4510,216,000/8 ;o ( — & — g & :
815,608,000 78 7T) 2 FEUERFK * ZERIERN
wEBEBRH  HHEREEEERTESK
SHEZSBMHEATRE - A ANEENT
EELRERERE AEBEVERZESE
#r1%A T o

CRBERBREZEERARERRE
el

2015 2014

—E-HF —T-mE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Within 60 days 60 HA 418,897 656,035
61 to 90 days 61290 H 20,854 127,087
More than 90 days @90 H 70,465 32,486
Total kL] 510,216 815,608

In determining the recoverability of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables, the Group consider any change in
credit quality of the debtors from the date of credit was
initially granted up to the reporting date. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision
required in excess of the allowance already made.

TA 188 7 JRE Wi AR TR e B M ZR 4 e EL At P MR R OR
ZAIHEIER - AEEEEEAKTREIE
EZRARERER LBRERRZEELEEREN
ERES - Rt EFERRERE—FFH
HBCFREZEERE -
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23. EWERIE R HMEWFIE @)

B 51 78 M AR TR S B A R M
REE AREZFOT

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

IR 2 FEMCR BRAT

An allowance was provided on doubtful debts due from trade
and other receivables and the movement are as follows:

2015 2014

—E—HF —PE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Balance at beginning of the year FHEEER 8,212 7,016
Impairment losses recognised on B ERFIBRER 2R EEE

receivables 15,927 1,551

Amounts written off as uncollectible W AR AT U B 2 FRIE (5,586) (355)

Balance at end of the year FRREEH 18,553 8,212

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. fTEERMTIA

Assets Liabilities
BE af&

notes 2015 2014 2015 2014

i —Z—hHF —ZT—HWNF Z—Z—HF — PO

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHIT F#ExT FAET

Foreign currency swaps  JNER Ef (i) 6,265 - 42,571 26,821
Structured foreign LB HNE HAE

currency options (if) - = - 6,641

6,265 - 42,571 33,462

(i) Foreign currency swaps (i) HSME=EHE

98

The Group has entered into certain cross currency swap
contracts under which the Group will pay notional
amounts of Australian dollar (“AUD") 109,775,000 and
will receive notional amounts of HK$658,090,000. The
Group will pay interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus certain basis points and receive
interest at Bank Bill Swap Rate (“BBSW") plus certain
basis points on a monthly or quarterly basis. The Group
will then pay Hong Kong dollar and receive AUD by
installments. The net loss on change in fair value
amounting to HK$13,989,000 (2014: HK$25,714,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss that are included in
“Other gains and losses”.

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

REBIY A TEESREPEL - Bt
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24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(ii)

Structured foreign currency options

The Group entered into certain structured foreign
currency options contracts with a bank to hedge against
the appreciation of Japanese Yen (“JPY") against
United States dollars (“US dollars”) for an agreed period
of time. The Group and the bank will settle on a gross
basis with reference to the difference between the spot
rate of JPY against US dollars and the strike price on
the monthly settlement date as per the contract. These
options include a knock-out provision whereby the

24.

fTEdmIE®

(ii) #HEXINERRE
AR B —RIRTTAT LA B A IMEH]
BEHK - LR EME AL+ AE(T A
BDERETTETDZHAE - A&E
Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂ%?ﬁi?@%ﬁ%?ﬁit?&%%ﬁ
R%EZEE EXRREBEEOTAE
EZT%%E(TZ%%E,“:. o It FHE
BREBUBGRX - eI REBEA QM
HGEFAPRILE - ZFEHNERFR
BMEARLE

contract will automatically be terminated in accordance
with the terms set out in the contract. The contracts are
either matured or terminated during the year.

25. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 25. FEQHEE N R RIR

The amount due from an associate is interest bearing at 2.5% FEUGEG & N\ BRI FF K 25% £ 4.85%
to 4.85% per annum and repayable on demand. The amount B BIREKIEIE o AENIAN K iBEAEL

is neither past due nor impaired. B o

MBS QR B EFERA - NEE ST
HEHE AR ZEEEERBEQARNERA
o RNEBEEFEHSEMER KD R
E - REEARRE ZMEEFIEREK

Before offering any new loan to associates, the Group will
assess the associate’s credit quality and the usage of loan by
the associate. The recoverability of the loan is reviewed
throughout the year. The whole loan to an associate is

repayable upon request for repayment, so the balance is B8 WERITABEHSEE - AREEE
neither past due nor impaired. In order to minimise credit risk, B ANEBEEEFEERBESNA IR
management of the Group has monitored the repayment REES
ability of the associate continuously.
26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 26. SRHFBITER RITEERE
BALANCES AND CASH %
2015 2014
ZB-HF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash on hand and in bank BE MBITET 1,858,435 2,034,460
Short term bank deposits 5 HASRIT IR 3K 269,421 1,627,686
Bank deposits with original maturity date  REHBRBEE=EA 2
more than 3 months RITHER - 1,664
2,127,856 3,663,710
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26.

27.

EFETZRA=T-RLEFE

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

The Group's bank balances and deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

Japanese
Yen
H
HK$'000
T
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z—RF+-A
=+—H 7,038
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—N&F+=A
=5 67,485

32 PR i 85
ﬁ ()

AEBENABREEEBNERBAINZEE
SMEZ RITRF REREIIAT

TER RITEFRR

HK$

uss
e
HK$'000
THAT

RMB
N
HK$'000
THTT

BT
HK$'000
THAT
213,288

95,088 115,201

183,803 85,019 1,630,306

Bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at fixed and
variable rates respectively which ranged from 0.01% to 2%
(2014: 0.01% to 3%) per annum.

Restricted bank deposits is to secure bills payables and are
therefore classified as current assets. The restricted bank
deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.85% (2014: 2.85%) per
annum. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon
settlement of bills payables.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 27.

REHHENETEREE
ZHEEME

Leasehold properties in the PRC held
under medium-term leases

SRITIFE RS ERITEF D BIENT0.01%E2%
(ZZE—M%E :0.01% £3%) 2 BT KT E
FRIREEE o

ZRHBITFARAALRENRE - HRU
DERRDEE - XBHIRITERIREEF

FI=1.85% (ZF—PUF : 285%):T 8 o &
PR HI) SR 1717 705 A FE - 240 4 R AR Bk o

FEHEFRBDEE

2015
—E—RF

2014

— T U4
HK$'000
FHT

HK$"000
FET

683 2,624

The directors of the Company approved the disposal of
certain properties which were previously developed as staff
quarters. Leasehold properties with a carrying amount of
HK$63,411,000 had been reclassified from prepaid lease
payment and properties, plant and equipment in prior years,
of which HK$1,788,000 was sold in 2015 for consideration of
HK$3,755,000. The gain on disposal of approximately
HK$1,967,000 was recognised in profit for the year ended 31
December 2015. No leasehold properties was sold during the
year ended 31 December 2014. The directors expect the
remaining leasehold properties will be sold in the coming
year.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. FEAYARTE R H At A RIE

- i e

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

—E-RE

Trade

Payables  Payables
ERERE EBAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET
Within 60 days 60 B A 2,987,179 912,587
61 to 90 days 61290H 441,042

More than 90 days #iH90 A 437,304

RBERRRERBR 25 2 BHREBENRE
NRBZEREDHTAOT

2014

—E-mE

Trade Bills
Total Payables Payables Total
At EERE  ERRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THAT THT
3,899,766 3,071,867 741,485 3,813,352
443,859 512,939 112,123 625,062
437,304 341,545 341,545

3,865,525 915,404

4,780,929 3,926,351 863,608 4,779,959

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 60 to
90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
time frame.

Included in other payables are sales deposit received with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$234,668,000 (2014:
HK$244,152,000), accruals of operating expenses with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$319,099,000 (2014:
HK$356,321,000), payables for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment with aggregate amount of
HK$69,637,000 (2014: HK$73,301,000), government grants
of HK$13,881,000 (2014: HK$16,365,000) and dividend
payable of HK$59,323,000 (2014: HK$88,357,000).

The Group's trade and bills payables that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Denominated in HK dollars LA TTEHE
Denominated in Japanese Yen AR EFHE

RBERNEEHNFE0EWNH - KAEE
HEREE ZHHEREZBR © UHEERR
EEHINX A BAFOR -

H b 5 3OE B 45 42 BR 1B & 234,668,000
BT (ZZ — 4 : 244,152,000/ 7T) 2 2
WSEE ¢ - #IRT(E 319,099,000 7T
(== — P4 : 356,321,000 7T ) 2 fEFH4F
LB - % 569,637,000 (- —N0
4 : 73,301,000 ) 2 KB - B 5
% 2 FEAT FUE ~ 13,881,000 T (=
— PO £ : 16,365,000 7T ) 2 AT 32 8L &
59,323,000 7t ( —Z — PY 4 : 88,357,000
BIT) ZERRE o

AEBNFHEEERNEEBIAINZER
SEZ BNRAERENREEIINT

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
154,439 103,723
375,722 296,531
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS, 29. IRITREMEE  EIKF
UNSECURED

2015 2014
—E—HF —mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Bank loans RITE K 3,458,620 3,712,961
Bills discounted with recourse BEREZITREE 36,469 32,174
Trust receipt loans ERBIEER 1,123,187 1,577,659
Other loans EMmERK 264,333 114,500
4,882,609 5,437,294

The Group’s bank and other borrowings that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

AEENAHASEEBNEETB NI EE
SMEZ RITREMEERTILT

Denominated in HK dollars B TTEHE 2,663,581 2,877,454
Denominated in Japanese Yen LAH BlFHE 95,354 109,227
Denominated in Australian dollars LURTTEHE 600,642 166,424
Carrying amount repayable*: FEfSBREE * -
Within one year R—FA 2,882,553 4,568,555
More than one year, but not exceeding —FREBRMERN
two years 1,240,057 553,701
More than two years, but not exceeding  MEZRBRAER
five years 759,999 315,038
4,882,609 5,437,294
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : 3| ABBET 2 —FR
under current liabilities EIBAFRIE (2,882,553) (4,568,555)
Amount due after one year shown under FIRIERBIBETR 2 —F1%
non-current liabilities EIHAzRIE 2,000,056 868,739
@ The amount due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out £ FPRE B EHNER B2 BEERBH

in loan agreements.

All the Group's borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at HIBOR, London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR"), the People’s Bank of China’'s benchmark rate or
BBSW plus certain basis points. Interest is repriced every
three months and the range of effective interest rates is at
0.33% 10 3.31% (2014: 0.94% to 6.15%) per annum.
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presenting in the consolidated statements
of financial position, the following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

B BT IR

30. ELEBIREE AfE

RREEMBERRERT 25
DHEAT

- LTS 2 i

2015 2014

—E-hHfF — PO

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TFHETT

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 60,068 48,583
Deferred tax assets RIEFIRE E (8,513) (8,867)
51,555 39,716

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

EAFEBEFEAERNEERTEHIA

_ &1 (A% RESHIT -
prior years:
Allowance
for Undistributed
Accelerated receivables profits of
tax and PRC
depreciation  inventories subsidiaries
Hh [ Bt R
InZEFE BWFHE ATRDHE
wE REFEEEE Y Al B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT FHIT FHAT
At 1 January 2014 RZE—mF—AH—H 16,857 (9,227) 40,630 48,260
Reversal of deferred tax liability 43 i F1)1% & [0l {& FE £ 18
upon distribution of profits =k - - (28,845) (28,845)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss ~ AEE Bz (HH)
for the year S| (1,055) 360 20,996 20,301
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MNE+=R
== 15,802 (8,867) 32,781 39,716
Reversal of deferred tax liability 79 ¥ 7 1% £ [0 IR L T8
upon distribution of profits afE - - (10,069) (10,069)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss ~ REEBZEH (%)
for the year & (2,710) 354 24,264 21,908
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—AF+_-A8
=+—A 13,092 (8,513) 46,976 51,555

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$131,820,000 (2014: HK$101,510,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely except for
HK$34,828,000 (2014: HK$30,900,000) in the tax jurisdiction
of the PRC which may be carried forward for 5 years.

R IR E B R Ak%@z;&EbFH%}H%
5 18131,820,000/%8 jo( = & — PO F:
101,510,000%75)‘I)ﬂf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂixmﬂ 53]
RARBEAFT AR BRI HRIR - B B Z S
BEIEERELERIAEE - RERZRFEE
SR PR B4R S - BRAPBIRIAS R AR R ok ]

454 F 4 7 34,828,000 T ( = — P 4F ¢
30,900,000 7T ) 5 °
—T—RFEFHR o SHEHEERAT 103



-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ“‘ﬂﬁﬁiﬁiﬂﬂ&

_'F'orthg-veﬁrendedm December 2015 » BE—Z—HF+-A=+—HILFE J———

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 30. EXERIBEE SF#®)

(continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BEARCEMESHE BT /)\F
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC —A— B BB BB Z G T
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. At 31 December FrE kR EBEMATENT - R_ZT—RF
2015, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the +ZA=1+—8 EREMBEHRERT  WE
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary A BENB AT 2 28T =5
differences attributable to accumulated profits of PRC 2,453,154,000/% w( — & — M £ :
subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,453,154,000 (2014: 1,799,315,000 % 7o) {E R IR IE R IE#E s+ [R
HK$1,799,315,000) as the Group is able to control the timing & 2 7N £ [B) A A ) 120 i) 13 o] B B 2= 58 A R
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable ] JNE RIBET@FE n] B R S O E i Z= 58 o

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. BK&
Number of
ordinary
shares
LZEREE
at HK$0.02 Share
per share capital
BRER0.02ET ['&
HK$'000
FHT
Authorised: ERE
Balance at 1 January 2014, RZZE—MNFE—H—H"
31 December 2014 —E-NE+—A=t-BRK
and 31 December 2015 —E-RAF¥+-A=+—H
iR 5,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRME
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZE-—MFE-A—Bz&H 2,919,593,398 58,392
Shares repurchased and cancelled EEEKEFHRN (12,494,000) (250)
Balance at 31 December 2014 and RZBE—NF+-_A=1+—HK
31 December 2015 —E-hF+-A=+—H
ZEERR 2,907,099,398 58,142
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or EFR - HEAATMBATIEE - HENE
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the B {E{a] AN A 7] _ETH &
year.
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. EXEBEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 29, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with the capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues of the Company and share buy-backs as well as
raising of bank borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
prior year.

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

33.

AREBEETEANEENRRAKERNNER

ERERE RS aRERRERTE

RBEREREAE R

AEBNEARBEBELFHE(BREME29
PIRBEfEE  ENBRRENRSEHEER)
KBt (BHRE BITIRA R #) 4K -

ARREFTHEEHEARB -BEFER
BEARRAREEARBZ AR X EBEX
RS ~ WITARR BN S BB R AD A K
EERTEEFHHARBELRRE

AREE M EERREDEA—FHER o

L =
a. SRIESE

2015 2014
—B-EE —TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Financial assets THEE

Loans and receivables (including cash B kEKZE (BFERE R

and cash equivalents) RE%EEER) 7,633,438 8,742,206
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 76,648 133,500
Derivative financial instruments TESRmIA 6,265 =
7,716,351 8,875,706

Financial liabilities TEEE
Amortised cost 84 Ak A 9,714,690 10,373,385
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 42,571 33,462
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, available-for-sale investments,
trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the financial
risks of changes in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates and change in prices (see below).

(i)  Foreign currency risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies which are
different from US dollars and Renminbi (“RMB"),
the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

The carrying amounts of foreign currency risk
arising from foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

33. €M I AE#®)

b.

TREAREEREREE

AEBFTESRITABERTER
NI - EUERIA K E b B U 5ROR -
FEM B S A RRIE - AT ERE -
FENRRIA R B F0R ~ |RITRE
EEARTESRTA - ZZE®
TAZFBEREEMFEHELEKE -

BHEZEEMTAZERKREZE
RERAOBREHENTX  EEEGER
RERZEFRR - AR KEA R
EitEE MR

W 5 EER

REB 2 T BAK MR R IMNEE
XEHEoMARUAREBRERR
(A3 -

(i) oM Bg
AEBZETRHANEE
ZEINERRENBARINEE
BETRARE (AR LS
HE -

R\EBR - UINEFHEZERE
ERE¥ABELZINERRZ
BREEWT :

Liabilities Assets
8E& BE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —TWOF —T-HF ZZZ—DNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THIT F#&xT FHET
Hong Kong dollar BT 2,818,021 2,981,412 230,861 206,499
JPY S| 471,077 406,498 7,039 67,485
Euro BT - 8 959 15,665
RMB AR - = 115,202 1,630,436
AUD SEIT 600,642 166,424 - =
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. €@ T H(#)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HEMEEEERBEE)

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) i5 Ak (&)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) ShEEER (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
The following table indicates the approximate TRETHREEE (BIETT)
change in the Group's profit after taxation for the RBMAREBERREHEEEKNE
year in response to reasonably possible change in o HEEEr IRy S IEE
the functional currency i.e. US dollars to the B MEMAEBEARFERTIZ
relevant currencies which the Group have S MPTE £ 2 A28 - AR
significant exposure at the reporting date. Since BHMEEXRGE S TEETE
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars under i SEBEWNEELEIE A @S
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the JT B2 3 7T BE RO B 2 BB A INEE |
management does not expect significant foreign M o ZNEE B I A 3 T LAININ
currency exposure in relation to the exchange rate w2 B o

fluctuation between Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars. The Group mainly exposes to foreign
currency risks other than US dollars.

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—NF
US dollar Increase US dollar Increase
strengthens (decrease) strengthens  (decrease)

(weakens) in profit  (weakens) in profit
ETHE & R 18 n EiHE ik gl
(R1E) O 4) (8218) CRLA)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

JPY HI[E] 14% 56,215 14% 39,570

(14%) (56,215) (14%) (39,575)

Euro BT 12% (96) 13% (1,687)

(12%) 96 (13%) 1,687

RMB AR 6% (5,551) 0.5% (6,807)

(6%) 5,551 (0.5%) 6,807

AUD RIT 1% 57,632 9% 12,298

(11%) (57,632) (9%) (12,298)

As set out in Note 24, at the end of the reporting BANMTIE 24 P& - IR HAK -

period, the Group had outstanding foreign NEBHEAATE ZINERE
currency swaps which also expose the Group to AN £ B S ANE R E R B o

currency fluctuation risks.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

For the foreign currency swap outstanding at 31
December 2015, if Hong Kong dollar was
strengthened against AUD by 11% (2014: 9%),
the post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 would decrease by approximately
HK$57,442,000 (2014: HK$12,482,000), if Hong
Kong dollar was weakened against AUD by 11%
(2014: 9%), the post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2015 would increase by
approximately HK$58,281,000 (2014: 12,870,000).

For the structured foreign currency options
outstanding at 31 December 2014, if US dollars
was strengthened against JPY by 14%, the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would decrease by approximately HK$4,906,000,
if US dollars was weakened against JPY by 14%,
the post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2014 would increase by approximately
HK$5,384,000.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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33. €M I E#®)

b. 2hREKREEEERREE)

5 A (&)
(i) SRR (4E)
BRRE DT (&)

BR—_ZE—RF+_A=+—H
ZARFEINERE - wE T H R
THEIT%(ZF — M 4F:
%) BE-_T—HF+_A
=+—HIEFE ZBRFE R FIR
S #957,442,00058 jT( — =
— PO 4F : 12,482,00078 7T ) ¢ f#
BILHBITEE11% (ZF—I
F:9%) BE-_T—HF+=
A=+—RHIEFE 2B ZRAH
BIJ 3% 1 #4958,281,000/8 7t ( =&
—PH4F : 12,870,000/ 70 ) 7T °

FTR—_ZE—NF+_—_A=+—H
Z AR E R IESNE AR - w3k
THBEAEILI% BE-Z
—ME+-—F=+—RBItFEEZ
B i 1% 0m A1 Bl B 4> 49 4,906,000
BT WA B ERE14% -

=2 E—NFE+-_A=+—H
LIEFE 2 BR L& & F Bl 38 A0 49
5,384,000 7T °

EEEBRR  HRFERZARAK
EERRAFAZER  SRRED
A7 5 & A SMNE BB N AR E ©
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and
amount due from an associate. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank balances and variable-rate bank and other
borrowings (see notes 26 and 29 for details). The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
LIBOR arising from the Group's Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings, the fluctuation of the
People’s Bank of China’s benchmark rate arising
from the RMB denominated borrowings and the
fluctuation of BBSW arising from the Group's
AUD denominated borrowings. The management
considers the exposure to interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances is insignificant due to the
low interest rate. The Group currently does not
use any derivative contract to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, the management of
the Company will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowing. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point
(2014: 100 basis point) increase or decrease is
used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2014:
100 basis point) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would decrease/increase by HK$41,190,000
(2014: decrease/increase by HK$45,401,000).

32. €M I E#®)

b.

CREREEBERBEK#E)

w5 R ()
(i) F)E =B

$‘il/,\7¥<1f‘ JZ{ETEWT’H

f/\ ;Zﬂﬁﬁgﬁi g fEfTT/TQ\
W& R EIRIBE R KEIJ‘I

FAERESREFERE - ZE
B2 ThoR B R1TATF ROF B R1TIE
BEUREMEES (G5 R W26

K29) 2BITHHNEREH -

N

%.ZL@%/}\LE%UTHF»«;KQZK

3] IL‘N%T_EEHEZ%T TEE
FREBIRTTR RS KRR

ﬁﬂ%?ﬁgz £g) - LARKE
BZEE TEEPRTEAR
RITEEN R ZEE) - MEKEA

SEVETEHEZEER -

ElE2

%Ef:‘ﬁ’\fﬁﬁmﬁ%%%ljizm

B o HRFRHRKFERIE -

ﬁh%ﬁﬁf‘- S IRTTA T‘Z*HEE%U

EREBILTEKX o

AEEREL

EEREAITER QAL HEF

AT - ARBEIRE R

RERERZ B HEANEE

B -

BRE DT

VAT BURRE D AT Th IR ARE B R TT

fEREZNERBRTMEE - %2

DT

DRERREHEF 2 AENKEA
AR E MRS - A ARTHER

1002 F(=ZF—M4 : 10027F)
ZEmskE D REREEEHF

RRLIREBEHIEL 25

filr o

W F = EFHTFE1002F(=

T P04 : 100%F) - M HE
fﬂzﬁiﬁ&%?“ NEFEREE

—hRF+-_A=+—HIHF
Fzﬁﬁmémﬁl | BIl3m, A>38 4

41,190,000 L ( =& — Iy

F

B, A045,401,000787T) ©

—hFFH o EFANERERAA

109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i o MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 « HEZ—FE—HF+-A=+—HLFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Other price risks
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in listed equity securities
classified under available-for-sale investments.

Price risk sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% (2014: 15%) higher/
lower, investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$11,497,000 (2014:
HK$20,025,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to perform an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group had concentration of credit risk as 15%
(2014: 18%) of total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest trade debtor, which is a company
located in the PRC with good reputation and repayment
history.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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b.

CREREEBERBEK#E)
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(i) E fit &1 /2 R
AEFBAZRENDBAAHE
EREZ LMBRABHFELEZK
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ERRRGURE DT
A TSREDH R BER R E S
ZBARERERMET

AR ABE EFTHK15% (=
T—J0F :15%) AR EE(E
HESHRTREERE AT
BEZHmEM &K
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

With respect of credit risk arising from the loan
receivable and other receivables, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each receivable at the end of
each reporting period and allowance for loan receivable
and other receivable are made. The management of the
Company considers that the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from default of the loan receivable is limited
as the amount has been fully provided for. The Group
manages its credit risk by closely monitoring the other
receivables with and follow up action being taken to
recover the overdue receivables. Other receivables
consist of a large number of counterparties which do
not give rise to significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk
The Group's liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
its current and expected liquidity requirements regularly
and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from reputable financial
institutions to meet the Group's liquidity requirements
in the short and long term. The management of the
Company also monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents adequate to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flow. To the extent that interest flows are floating rates,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

33. €M I E#®)
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. T R

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HEMEEEERBEE)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEBEEER(E)
In addition, the following table details the Group's AN - TRV AEBGRESTES R

liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities

Iﬂﬁﬁzwﬁﬁﬁ AT e TRIIR
BRNBHEEE 2 ITETAZARFR
//|L]\&/»|LHZ'I BREMARE - REEITE
EMIAZRBESHOMIREESLD
W%E%% TTHREEEBRAAR
IR ERNERTETARSRE
Zhﬁ&+\ix°

are essential for an understanding of the timing of the

cash flows of derivatives.

Weighted Total
average undiscounted Carrying
effective 0to3 4-6 Over cash  amount at
interest rate months months 3years flows 31 December
R+=A
mERE FERE =t-8
ERAE  SZ=EF WMEAEA RERE ZEEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn T T
2015 —E-1f
Non-derivative instruments 374 T8
Trade and other payables JEA BRIE R A A 5B - 4,832,081 - - - - - 4,832,081 4,832,081
Varigble interest rate bankand 2 EBSRITEEREMEE
other borrowings 2.23 1,528,055 331,448 1,106,469 1,285,751 771,697 - 5,029,420 4,882,609
6,360,136 331,448 1,106,469 1,285,751 111,697 - 9,861,501 9,714,690
Derivatives — gross settlement 74 — 2 &5
Foreign currency swap SNERH
— inflow —&A 20,636 20,352 58,051 130,125 54,325 - 283,489 281,382
— outflow — (25,302) (25,356) (69,274) (149,585) (56,862) - (326,379) (323,953)
(4,666) (5,004) (11,223) (19,460) (2,537) - (42,890) (42,571)
2014 -g-mE
Non-derivative instruments 374 T8
Trade and other payables ENBRR AR - 4936091 = = = = - 496091 4,936,091
Variable interest rate bankand 78 RTEERAMEE
other borrowings 1.94 3,711,088 145,808 391,391 576,141 697,253 - 5,521,681 5,437,294
8,647,179 145,808 391,391 576,141 697,253 - 10457772 10373385
Derivatives — gross settlement 74 — 2E£5
Foreign currency swap SNERH
— inflow — kA 1,466 1,542 22,938 84,185 60,983 - 1mn4 169,865
— outflow — (963) (1,013) (25,670) (98,358) (72,127) = (198,131) (196,686)
503 529 (2,732) (14173) (11,144) - (27,017) (26,821)
Derivatives — gross settlement 74 — 2 &5
Structured foreign currency SEENEDE
options
— inflow —A 20,444 20,444 6,815 - - - 47,703 45,922
—outflow — it (23,400) (23,400) (7,800) - - = (54,600) (62,563)
2,956) (2,956) (985) - - - (6,897) 6,641)

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and

financial liabilities.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. T R

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. TMIBEZAFEEE
instruments
(i)  Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial (i) BEEEUNTLEEIAEZAE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring BEemEEREREBEZATE
basis &

REBREHRR - AEBEZ AT
EREMTESRTATRAY
BEE - TRRAEENAEE
HEEREERSRABIAF
BEZ2EF -

The Group's available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined.

Fair value as at
Financial assets/ RUT Bz ALEE Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
financial liabilities 31 December 2015 31 December 2014 hierarchy and key inputs
ZE-%F —E-mE AYEE
SREE/SRAR +=A=1-H T=HET=1E BRER HEREREERAYE
Available-for-sale Assets Assets Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
investments — HK$76,648,000 —HK$133500000  FE14 RERmST L RE
AtHERE g BE
— 76,648,000 10 — 133,500,000 /87T
Foreign currency swap Assets Nil Level 2 Discounted cash flow method
(Note 1) — HK$6,265,000 4 F28 RERENRA
HNERE(HFET) EE
- 6,265,000 7T
Liability Liability The key inputs are foreign exchange spot
— HK$42,571,000 — HK$26,821,000 and forward rates and interest rate curves.
&f af& TEHALBAINER & REHF X
— 42,571,000 — 26,821,000 7T PARAE R -
Structured foreign Nil Liability Level 3 Monte Carlo Simulation Method
currency options & — HK$6,641,000 F3, SRREERE
[Note 2) A&
S NE R (Fiat2) — 6,641,000

“ZE—RFFH o SFEBRERAT

The key inputs are spot exchange rate on
the date of valuation, strike rate, time to
maturity, notional amount, payout amount
for each settlement, risk-free rate of JPY
and US dollars and the average implied
volatility of the exchange rate as at
valuation date.

FEHAEAREARNSBER 7
Flx BB 2548 SAEERL
YieH  BERETERRAE
RN EERBERTIRERIE -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

Note 1:  The discounted cash flow method uses only
observable market inputs.
Note 2: If the average implied volatility of the exchange

rate is 14% higher/lower and held other variables
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2014 would increase by
HK$5,309,000/increase by HK$5,458,000. Due to
the terms of the contracts, changes in the inputs
adopted in the valuation model would lead to
asymmetric changes in the fair values.

There is no transfer between different levels of
the fair value hierarchy for the current period.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(but fair value disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. €M I AE#®)
c. Fair value measurements of financial c. LTMIBAZAFEEFTESE)
instruments (continued)
(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (i) WIREEEEUAFEESE
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis ZEMEEREHEBZNATFE
(but fair value disclosures are required) (continued) BH(EAEEATERHEE)(E)
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 R-E—FZFR_-F—EFE+=

A=+—HZ A FEEBLEHE

31 December 2015
—g2-#HF+=A=+-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£14% $E24 $£3R/ a5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET F# T FE T

Financial assets SMEE
Available-for-sale AIEHERE

investments 76,648 - - 76,648
Foreign currency swap %M 2 Hf - 6,265 - 6,265
Total =X 76,648 6,265 - 82,913
Financial liabilities &2@&&E
Foreign currency swap %M 2 Hf - 42,571 - 42,571
Total &5t - 42,571 - 42,571

31 December 2014
—FHmF+=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1H FE2M FIR a&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Financial assets SREE

Available-for-sale A HERE
investments 133,500 - - 133,500
Total S 133,500 - - 133,500

Financial liabilites <S@E%E

Foreign currency swap %M 2 Hf - 26,821 - 26,821
Structured foreign #E g =\ HNE B

currency options - - 6,641 6,641
Total St - 26,821 6,641 33,462
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. T R

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
financial liabilities

TRMEEFEIRAFEETEBZHEK

Structured

foreign

currency

options

#EX

SNEE HfE

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2013 R-_E—=%F—H—H =

Net settlement EEFE (1,616)
Fair value loss charged to profit or loss RIBRA R 2 AT EEESE

— realised — BE#R 1,616

— unrealised — RE 6,641

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WF+=-A=+—H 6,641

Net settlement EE R (7,289)
Fair value loss charged to profit or loss Rigz=h ik 2z A EEEE

— realised —BER 648

— unrealised — KRB =

At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+-_A=+—8H =

The total loss of approximately HK$648,000 (2014:
HK$8,257,000) for the year included in profit or loss represent
the total fair value loss related to structured foreign currency
options matured or terminated during the year included in
“Other gains and losses”.
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34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

34, REFHNEAE

AEBERAEA

RkER - AEERBRBETAIREHLEHAR
THIHARR B B 2 AR R &R AR A A9 1~ SR FE 4D
T

2015 2014

—g-H5F —TOF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Within one year —FNR 8,162 9,391
In the second to fourth year inclusive F_EEENF(BIEERMT) 1,554 4,854
9,716 14,245

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms of two to four years with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$11,350,000 (2014: HK$10,291,000), which was derived
from letting of staff quarters included in the Group's property,
plant and equipment.

At the reporting date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

REMONREAREREETRAZEYME
MENZEE BHOZHEERAMED
FoURETHEE -

TEBEABEEA

KNEFZHE 2 WM S WA K 11,350,000
TT(=Z—PU4 : 10,291,000}87T) - %%
SWARBEHBFALEBYE - BE K&
HBZEBIES -

R|EH - AREEH FIIRRREBOM
REMFRILAA

2015 2014

—g-H5F —TOF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FAT

Within one year —FNR 438 1,204
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRFT (BEEEMT) 1,324 11
1,762 1,315
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. &

2015 2014
—E-a¥

—TmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Capital expenditure contracted for but not  BEULEE 2 - iR R 3R

provided in the consolidated financial 2EIHBRERE

statements in respect of acquisition of SRR PEE L

property, plant and equipment BARYH 190,239 340,649
Capital expenditure contracted for but not Bt} EEs& A T ET 4B

provided in the consolidated financial RELGZEUBREKF

statements in respect of contribution to B2 AR H

an associate - 575,460

36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 36. ERIFRISHE

AEBEZ2RBEBEBHAZIRHMERTE
Trt 8 AEBEBEFELL% HKX - MERT

All of the Group's Hong Kong employees are required to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is

required to contribute 5%, while the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their salaries to the scheme to the
maximum of HK$1,500 per month (2014: HK$1,250 per
month from January to May and HK$1,500 per month from
June to December) for each employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees to the state-
managed retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.
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37.

38.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 37. BUFERE
At the end of the reporting period, government grants of RIEER  NEBREEAHWEDE K
HK$13,881,000 (2014: HK$16,365,000) were included in ERhk#ELAERFER 2 BWMFER
trade and other payables, to subsidise the acquisition of 13,881,00078 L ( —Z — U £ : 16,365,000
property, plant and machinery for scientific research 77T ) 51 A1 BR TE K2 B Ath JE < FRIE © 72X
development. The amount has been treated as deferred PO AR AR A L8R & & 2 ] {E B
income and will be transferred to profit or loss over the useful FHREEE SRS o FBRERARFET AR
lives of the relevant assets. This policy resulted in a credit to 7% 51,802,000 L ( =T — P04 :
profit or loss in the current year of HK$1,802,000 (2014: 2,106,000/ L) °
HK$2,106,000).
Incentive subsidies of HK$51,872,000 (2014: HK$17,838,000) N SR B A ek B B B A RIESMH
have been received in the current year to encourage the R IERMT A AR E MR S ENE
operation of a PRC subsidiary for the development on export Bh51,872,000% Jc( =— & — M 4%F:
sales and advance technology. There were no specific 17,838,000/ 70 ) ° 7% & 2 8L W &4 &
conditions attached to the grants and, therefore, the Group 1 Bt - REBRIEIFERBIPIER
recognised the grants in profit or loss upon receipt. ARRL ©
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BEALRS
(i)  During the year, the Group entered into the following () FA- NEEHEBEERFFILATR
transaction with an associate. Z
Associate Nature of transaction 2015 2014
/N REME —E-hHfF —E—JOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Truly HZ Loan to an associate
RN RN SN 768,600 =
Interest income
FEHA 10,701 —
Research and development income
HEUA 3,147 =
Rental income
HelA 120 90
Car rental income
RERASBA 13 -

Interest receivable of HK$10,701,000 was included in
trade and other receivables.

J&E Y F1) 210,701,000 7% 7T 51 A FE U2 BR
AR E A e WA -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i)  The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year were as follows:

38. MEALRZ &)

(i), AFEEERHGEIEEEEKREZ
BT

2015 2014

—B-HF —FT0F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Short-term benefits S HIR A 40,021 22,328
Post-employment benefits BB B A 136 133
40,157 22,461

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

39.1 General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

EEREBITHAR ZH M) i 5 B
ZEE2EMARB T HBERE

o

it

39. XAFEEME A TER

39.1 B ARz —RER
RBERRAEBWE QR 2 B0
T~

Nominal value of
issued and fully

Place of
incorporation

or registration/
operation
EMRIFER,
S

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
ERTRARE
EERKRA
EMEFEE

Proportion
ownership interest
held by the Company
PNGIES2 S
et 4 5340
2015 2014
-5 —TNF

Principal activities

FEER

Truly Electronics Manufacturing  Hong Kong HK$1,000,010 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Limited /s 1,000,010/ 7T calculators and electronic
EHETERAR components
BT ERREFIHES
Truly Instrument Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% Trading of electric tooth brush
ENESERAR e 100870 and health care products
BYTRIREARRERES
Truly Semiconductors Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Trading of LCD products
EH+ERERDA 0 1,000787T REBETSERE S
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

39.1 General information of subsidiaries (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREMR

Truly Opto-electronics Limited

EMEEERRF

Truly Industrial Limited

EHNIRERARF

Truly (USA) Inc.

EHETARAA"

N+ ERERAR

EMESROLR)ARAR

EMAERHBRAR

EMTECIR)BERAR*

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
EERRE
HEMEREE

Place of
incorporation

or registration/
operation
TMRIRER

Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
Bt 1,000,000/ 7T
Hong Kong HK$872,894
S 872,894 57T
United States US$20,000
of America 20,0003 T
xE
PRC US$53,823,288
F 53,823,288 % 7T
PRC US$498,300,000
I 498,300,000 T
PRC US$1,000,000
m 1,000,000 T
PRC RMB340,000,000
H ARE
340,000,000 7T
PRC RMB280,000,000
F ARE
280,000,000 7T

~ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. KRB X EMBLATNER @)

39.1 B ARz —RER (&)

Proportion
ownership interest
held by the Company
AAERERZ
FERRELAl

2015 2014
L
85.4% 85.4%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
85.4% 85.4%
100% 100%

“E—REER o SFEEERAT

Principal activities

FEER

Trading of compact camera
module and touch panel

BB E A R B R E
25

Trading of electronic
components

ETLHES

Marketing of electronic
calculators

EFHERTREH

Manufacture of electronic
calculators and electronic
components

RETHERRET

Manufacture of LCD products
HERBRBERSEM

Manufacture of electric
toothbrush and health care
products

SEFH TR REARRER

Manufacture of compact
camera module and touch
panel

SRR LR
Em

Manufacture of electronic
component

EET T
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. ARFETEMBARESR &)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

39.1 General information of subsidiaries (continued) 39.1

* wholly foreign owned enterprise

Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and
Truly (USA) Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at 31 December 2015 and 2014 or at any
time during the years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

MWEARZ—RER (&)

* SNEBE R

1= A E T AR 2 a ETruly (USA)
Inc.4h » FTE KB A R BANA 7 EE
B o

R-Z-—EFR-F—MF =7
=t+—BRERETRE - SHEA
AP AR AE (A (8 2 (RS 2

RBEMR ARBFEEHAEEE
TREAFEZEMMBRR - 1hE
MEBARKEMNERELE - ZFH
BARZEREBHEMT -

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEK FTEEEME MEARHE
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E—HEF =4
+=A=t+-8 +=A=1—~
Investment holding or inactive Hong Kong 7 7
RE ARSI E B BB
Germany 1 1
=E
Singapore 1 1
EApIIE
9 9
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

39.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company that has material non-
controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting
and principal rights held by non-
place of business controlling interests

Name of subsidiary ML,/ HERRRESE

HEAFEH FEEEHY BRREERRZZELH
31122015  31.12.2014
“E-1f —Z2-|mE
T=B=+-B +=A=1-H

39. KRB X EMBLATNER @)

392 EREEAFEZRER ZFZEWE

DNEZFHE
TREBINERERFERBE IR
BMBARZFHE -

Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
controlling interests controlling interests
AREFERER 2 8H RitEERER
31.12.2015 31.12.2014 31.12.2015 31.12.2014
“B-1f  “E-mF  ZB-EE  ZE-IF
t=A=t-8 +tZA=t-H +=A=t-H +tZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EHXERR PRC 14.6% 14.6%
BRAA M

Summarised financial information in respect of the
above subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised
consolidated financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

FERXERGERD A

TR TEL TiEn TR

83,425 130,907 510,064 446,453

B LAk B A AR ERIEERRAE
BmZMBERBENT - THlERa M
BEMBESEEARAEEHAZ

EFRAERBERRE

2015 2014
—g-HF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

Current assets MEVEE 6,308,154 6,984,768
Non-current assets JEmEEE 3,687,158 3,207,666
Current liabilities mBeE 6,066,991 7,062,544
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 375,000 12,951

Equity attributable to owners of the NAEIHEE ANEERER

Company

3,043,257 2,670,486

Non-controlling interests FEERR

510,064 446,453
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“__For the year ended 31 December 2015 + HE—E—HF+=A=+—BILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

39. XRRIEEMNBELARER &)

39.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that 92 EEERFERERZIZENE
have material non-controlling interests NARIZFHE (&)
(continued)
BERXERGERA A (continued) BRXERBERAT (E)
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
BE-Z—RF BAEZE-_ZT—UF
+=-—H=+—8 +=—A=+—H
ILFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Revenue WS 12,268,272 13,028,107
Expenses i 5% 329,303 327,817
Profit for the year REFHF 572,310 898,043
Profit attributable to owners of the RAEHEA ANEEET
Company 488,885 767,136
Profit attributable to the non-controlling  JEF% AR %5 FE (5 34 A1)
interests 83,425 130,907
Profit for the year REEHF 572,310 898,043
Other comprehensive expense RAEHEB AEG
attributable to owners of the EMEEAx
Company (116,115) (42,131)
Other comprehensive expense FEPE AR R A FE R B A
attributable to the non-controlling 2HEBX
interests (19,814) (7,190)
Other comprehensive expense AFEEHMEERAY
for the year (135,929) (49,321)
Total comprehensive income attributable ZNA B %A A FE(E
to owners of the Company e PNCE 372,770 725,005
Total comprehensive income attributable JE#5 f&HE S FE (L
to the non-controlling interests EXTLONCE 63,611 123,717
Total comprehensive income REE2EKALEE
for the year 436,381 848,722
Dividends paid to non-controlling B IEERER R
interests - -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 84 %7518 &k A F5E 983,831 1,734,179
Net cash outflow from investing KEEEIR R F5E
activities (1,048,088) (1,828,915)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing RE&EEIE S GRE),/ HA
activities AR (1,138,009) 1,786,738
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (L), RAFE (1,202,266) 1,692,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B H R

Fortheyearended31December2015'@1—7 AF+ZA=+—BLFE

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, a
subsidiary of the Company is a defendant in a legal
action in lItaly involving the alleged defective goods
manufactured by the subsidiary according to its
customers’ designs and specifications. The claim above
against the subsidiary is approximately Euro 7.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$61 million) in
aggregate. The directors believe, based on legal advice,
that the case has legal and factual grounds to defend
and therefore it is not probable that losses (including
claims for costs) will be incurred. As a result, no
provision has been made as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 in this regard.

(ii)

40. ZAEE

(i)

HE-_Z—AFEK_ZT—NE+_A
=+—HLEFE  AAFR—HEHRBA
AR BAF—RWEL RZH B AT
BEEFP R RBRRUERHBEE
AT IEAR - Liligty
ZHBA 72$$Dﬁﬁ%7momo
BT (A5 R 4961,000,000 5 7T ) °

%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%v%%#ﬁ%&
MEEEBETIR Bt RHEH
FPARAEELEFEB(BEEAHR) -
Wit RZE—RER_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—B W RV -

2015
—E-hEfF

2014
—mE
HK$'000
THAT

HK$'000
FET

Corporate guarantee given by the Group A E B IR FIA N AT ZE1T

for bank borrowings granted to: BB R RER
An associate RN 3,538,920 =
and utilised by: BB TATER :
An associate iR N 1,478,100 -
In addition, at 31 December 2015, the other shareholder BN RZE—RFF+=—A=+—8 -

of an associate provided corporate guarantee to the
above bank borrowings in proportion to its respective
ownership interest amounting to approximately
HK$867,035,000 (2014: HK$NIl). A counter-indemnity in
favour of the other shareholder is executed pursuant to
which the Group undertakes to indemnify the other
shareholder 24.5% of the liabilities arising from the
bank borrowings.

The directors assess the risk of default of the associate
at the end of reporting period and consider the risk to
be insignificant and it is less likely that any guaranteed
amount will be claimed by the counterparties.

b8 R Rl 2 AR L E A S
BERRTEERFERRERD
867,035,000/ TL(=F — M4 : TF
T0) o AREAZEMBR BE AR
MRBERE  BREAKEAGRE
R BERTEEMELERS 2
24.5% °

EERHEMRIEBRERRZED
Bk RRERRRETNEXN - MR
FHFIRAIERREEREHE
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MEERME

“__For the year ended 31 December 2015 + HE—E—HF+=A=+—BILFE

41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 41. BREMEE
The following were the Group's bills receivables as at 31 UTAEAREER-_E—RAFR_T—NF
December 2015 and 2014 that were discounted to banks on T A=+ —BREEEREEENR TR
a full recourse basis. TZREEE -
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZTNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount of discounted bills IR ER R E
receivables 36,469 32,174
Carrying amount of associated liabilities & & EREE (36,469) (32,174)
Net position PR - -
The Group discounted bills receivables to banks by RNEBIRGEEREENBERINER TR
discounting those receivables on a full recourse basis. As the T ARAEETEEZERAERZIHEKX
Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards B Bk - B AL B RE R R W 4 & SRER
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full EEEK&EZ S HEEEANE WIRS (B
carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the iF29) c ZEEMEENAEB 2BV
cash received on the transfer as discounted bills (see note RO 2R FR R S K AN ABR e

29). These financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 December

BEE+T-A=t—HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——% ZE—ZfF %= “T-NF C—F-5fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T T FET THET
Revenue Yezs 10,603,988 12,374,379 20,680,750 21,415,651 19,427,118
Cost of sales SHERA (9,194,294)  (10,817,526)  (17,788,815)  (18,929,229)  (17,305,461)
Gross profit EF 1,309,694 1,556,853 2,891,935 2,486,422 2,121,657
Other income HAA 49,754 51,717 109,492 124,494 132,600
Other gains and losses Efnisms (25,591) 19,185 (2,320) (45,096) (107,923)
Impairment loss on available- A HERERE
for-sale investments &8 (106,026) - - (7,216) (29,821)
Administrative expenses THER (302,821) (365,210) (479,496) (429,478) (410,454)
Distribution and selling expenses 44 & $4& & (188,554) (206,107) (325,923) (395,733) (432,511)
Finance costs BB ER (65,110) (72,646) (78,974) (93,890) (102,501)
Share of result of an associate ~ D{EHEE A FEE - - - (17,502) (47,691)
Profit before tax BB R F 671,346 983,792 2,114,714 1,622,001 1,123,356
Income tax expense FriEHix (290,587) (267,833) (346,447) (372,725) (194,509)
Profit for the year AEE R 380,759 715,959 1,768,267 1,249,276 928,847
Attributable to: AT AL
Equity holders of the Company $’“ﬂ$’§£ﬁﬁ*ﬁ/\ 380,759 710,261 1,619,990 1,118,369 845,422
Non-controlling interests JEE R R - 5,698 148,277 130,907 83,425
380,759 715,959 1,768,267 1,249,276 928,847
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

At 31 December
W+=BA=+-AH
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F—% ZF--f ZF-=f ZF-NF ZB-EHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FTAT TAT FTAET FAT TERT
Total assets BEARE 10,098,832 11,687,162 16,280,931 18,731,528 18,234,444
Total liabilities oY=l (5,702,030)  (6,446,875)  (9,054,075)  (11,208,169)  (10,638,863)
4,396,802 5,140,287 7,226,856 7,523,359 7,595,581
Equity attributable to equity /NS EES TN
owners of the Company fEfb iR 4396802 4977239 6904120  7,076906 7,085,517
Non-controlling interests R - 163,048 322,736 446,453 510,064
4,396,802 5,140,287 7,226,856 7,523,359 7,595,581
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Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

ATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
AFMBRARZEH

BREARANRERRZHBHARARZEHNEIE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Investments in subsidiaries MEBAERE 81,700 81,700
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUGBT B A B Fk I8 865,664 1,601,165
Other assets Hih&ERE 2,445 24,702
949,809 1,707,567
Total liabilities waeE (59,732) (817,137)
890,077 890,430
Share capital A& A 58,142 58,142
Reserves R 831,935 832,288
890,077 890,430
Capital
Share Share Special redemption Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve profits Total
;&N RRE*  BhRE ERERRE REBRA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT BT T T BT FHIT
At 1 January 2014 RZZE-MF—-F—H 58,392 832,478 17,410 617 38,763 947,660
Profit for the year AEEHF - - - - 638,001 638,001
Dividends recognised as RENEZRE
distribution - - - - (640,428) (640,428)
Shares repurchased and 2R K 2 RN
cancelled (250) (54,553) - 250 (250) (54,803)
At 31 December 2014 NZZE-MF+=A
=t+—~H 58,142 777,925 17,410 867 36,086 890,430
Profit for the year REEHF] - - - - 348,499 348,499
Dividends recognised as ~ HR AR K2
distribution - - - - (348,852) (348,852)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—HF+-A
=t+—H 58,142 777,925 17,410 867 35,733 890,077

Under the applicable laws of Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the *
Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association
and provided that immediate following the distribution or paying dividend

the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

# The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between #
the net book values of the underlying assets of the Company's
subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares of these companies

were acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount of the
Company's shares issued for the acquisitions.
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